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CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 
CLAconnect.com 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

Board of Directors 
KIPP Academy Charter School 
Bronx, New York 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of KIPP Academy Charter School (a nonprofit 
organization), which comprise the statements of financial position as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, and 
the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended, and 
the related notes to the financial statements. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We 
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Governmental Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from 
material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion. 

CLA is an independent member of Nexia International, a leading, global network of independent 
accounting and consulting firms. See nexia.com/member-firm-disclaimer for details. 
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Board of Directors 
KIPP Academy Charter School 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of KIPP Academy Charter School as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, and the changes in 
its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Other Matters 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. 
The schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal 
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements 
for Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the 
financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and 
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. 
Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic 
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, 
the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the 
basic financial statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
November 1, 2021 on our consideration of KIPP Academy Charter School’s internal control over 
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the 
scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the result of that 
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of KIPP Academy Charter School’s internal 
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering KIPP Academy Charter School’s 
internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 

Plymouth Meeting, Pennsylvania 
November 1, 2021 
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KIPP ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 

2021 2020 
ASSETS 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 2,832,390 $ 2,486,241 $ 
Grants and Contracts Receivable 390,668 525,665 
Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets 1,480,557 1,087,864 
Equipment and Improvements 223,291 394,432 

Total Assets 4,926,906 $ 4,494,202 $ 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS (DEFICIT) 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses 660,684 $ 201,240 $ 
Loans Payable 4,000,000 6,877,567 
Capital Lease Obligation 107,203 160,805 
Due to Related Parties 2,062,579 1,344,727 

Total Liabilities 6,830,466 8,584,339 

NET ASSETS (DEFICIT) 
Without Donor Restrictions (1,950,169) (4,139,982) 
With Donor Restrictions 46,609 49,845 

Total Net Assets (Deficit) (1,903,560) (4,090,137) 

Total Liabilities and Net Assets (Deficit) 4,926,906 $ 4,494,202 $ 

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 
(3) 





   
    
     

   
 

 

                                                 
                                                                      

                                                                         
                                                                                          

                                                                             
                                                                                        

                                                                                       
                                                                                       

                                                                                        
                                                                                        

                                                                                   
                                                                                  
                                                                                                  

                                                                                        
                                                                                       

                                                                                                   
                                                                                           

                                                                                                      
                                                                                           

                                                                                                 
                                                                                                 

                                                                                          
                                                                                                

                                                                                                  
                                                                                           

                                                                                             

                                   

 

 
 

KIPP ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 
STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

Support 
Program Services Services 

Regular 
Education 

Special 
Education Total 

Management 
and General 

Total 
Expenses 

Employee Wages 
Payroll Taxes and Employee Benefits 
Licensing and Management Fee 
Litigation and Legal Services Fees 
Other Professional Fees 
Supplies and Materials 
Occupancy 
Telephone and Internet 
Technology Equipment and Materials 
Equipment and Maintenance 
Academic Programming 
Professional Development 
Insurance 
Depreciation and Amortization 
Events 
Student Transportation and Other Fees 
Memberships and Subscriptions 
Accounting and Audit Services Fees 
Printing and Publications 
Uncollectible Receivables 
Postage and Shipping 
Miscellaneous 
Candidate Recruiting 
Bank and Other Fees 
Interest Expense 
Use of Donated Materials and Services 

Total Expenditures 

$ 

$ 

11,159,868 
3,310,987 

36,586 
212,571 
105,595 
734,547 
533,343 
146,796 
521,392 
249,068 
187,789 
145,542 

-
171,141 

32,965 
1,586 

30,697 
-

37,942 
2,196 
8,263 

15,222 
1,349 
5,674 

61,100 
10,986 

17,723,205 

$ 

$ 

1,007,243 
152,793 

-
-

21,474 
-
-
-
-
-

458 
758 

-
-

15 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

1,182,741 

$ 

$ 

12,167,111 
3,463,780 

36,586 
212,571 
127,069 
734,547 
533,343 
146,796 
521,392 
249,068 
188,247 
146,300 

-
171,141 
32,980 

1,586 
30,697 

-
37,942 
2,196 
8,263 

15,222 
1,349 
5,674 

61,100 
10,986 

18,905,946 

$ -
-

2,515,219 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

164,367 
-
-
-
-

21,866 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

$ 2,701,452 

$ 

$ 

12,167,111 
3,463,780 
2,551,805 

212,571 
127,069 
734,547 
533,343 
146,796 
521,392 
249,068 
188,247 
146,300 
164,367 
171,141 
32,980 
1,586 

30,697 
21,866 
37,942 
2,196 
8,263 

15,222 
1,349 
5,674 

61,100 
10,986 

21,607,398 

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 
(5) 



   
    
     

   
 

                                                 
                                                                      

                                                                         
                                                                                          

                                                                                  
                                                                                        

                                                                                       
                                                                                       

                                                                                        
                                                                                        

                                                                                   
                                                                                  
                                                                                                  

                                                                                        
                                                                                           

                                                                                
                                                                                          

                                                                                             
                                                                                           

                                                                                                          
                                                                                           
                                                                                                 

                                                                                                
                                                                                                         

                                                                                                   
                                                                                                           

                                                                                           

                                   

 

 
 

KIPP ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 
STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 

Support 
Program Services Services 

Regular 
Education 

Special 
Education Total 

Management 
and General 

Total 
Expenses 

Employee Wages 
Payroll Taxes and Employee Benefits 
Licensing and Management Fee 
Litigation and Legal Services Fees 
Other Professional Fees 
Supplies and Materials 
Occupancy 
Telephone and Internet 
Technology Equipment and Materials 
Equipment and Maintenance 
Academic Programming 
Professional Development 
Insurance 
Depreciation and Amortization 
Field Lessons 
Consultants 
Events 
Student Transportation and Other Fees 
Memberships and Subscriptions 
Accounting and Audit Services Fees 
Printing and Publications 
Postage and Shipping 
Miscellaneous 
Candidate Recruiting 
Use of Donated Materials and Services 
Bank and Other Fees 
Interest Expense 

Total Expenditures 

$ 

$ 

10,956,415 
3,203,304 

36,399 
202,329 
80,366 

509,244 
811,660 
157,366 
259,969 
142,366 
161,830 
208,337 

-
206,073 

25,927 
34,972 
28,825 
21,325 
30,543 

-
17,350 

3,264 
2,119 

982 
8,197 

671 
69,177 

17,179,010 

$ 

$ 

1,174,068 
172,557 

-
-

8,256 
-
-
-
-
-

577 
411 

-
-
-

18,998 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

1,374,867 

$ 

$ 

12,130,483 
3,375,861 

36,399 
202,329 

88,622 
509,244 
811,660 
157,366 
259,969 
142,366 
162,407 
208,748 

-
206,073 

25,927 
53,970 
28,825 
21,325 
30,543 

-
17,350 
3,264 
2,119 

982 
8,197 

671 
69,177 

18,553,877 

$ -
-

2,241,999 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

172,146 
-
-
-
-
-
-

8,004 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

$ 2,422,149 

$ 

$ 

12,130,483 
3,375,861 
2,278,398 

202,329 
88,622 

509,244 
811,660 
157,366 
259,969 
142,366 
162,407 
208,748 
172,146 
206,073 

25,927 
53,970 
28,825 
21,325 
30,543 
8,004 

17,350 
3,264 
2,119 

982 
8,197 

671 
69,177 

20,976,026 

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 
(6) 



   
    

     

   
 

    
          
                     
              
           

                   

    
                                       

                                        

    
                                 

                                  
                                    

                           
                   

                          

                   

               

       
     

                 
         

   
                       

   
                      
                     

                     
                       

               

             

  
                               

 

KIPP ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 

2021 2020 
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Receipts from Local, State, and Federal Sources 21,905,037 $ 23,581,660 $ 
Receipts from Others 2,023,935 138,595 
Payments to Suppliers and Vendors (8,468,443) (18,761,207) 
Payments to Employees (12,167,111) (12,130,483) 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 3,293,418 (7,171,435) 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Acquisition of Capital Assets - (8,613) 

Net Cash Used By Investing Activities - (8,613) 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Repayments of Loans Payable (1,000,000) -
Proceeds from Loans Payable - 6,877,567 
Gain on Extinguishment of Paycheck Protection Program Loan (1,893,667) -
Repayments of Capital Lease Obligation (53,602) (53,602) 

Net Cash Provided (Used) By Financing Activities (2,947,269) 6,823,965 

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 346,149 (356,083) 

Cash and Cash Equivalents – Beginning of Year 2,486,241 2,842,324 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS – END OF YEAR 2,832,390 $ 2,486,241 $ 

RECONCILIATION OF CHANGE IN NET ASSETS TO NET CASH 
PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Change in Net Assets 2,186,577 $ (71,251) $ 
Adjustments to Reconcile Change in Net Assets to Net Cash 

Provided (Used) by Operating Activities: 
Depreciation and Amortization 171,141 206,073 
Change in Assets and Liabilities: 

Grants and Contracts Receivable 134,997 2,815,480 
Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets (392,693) (366,384) 
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses 475,544 (9,604,351) 
Due to Related Parties 717,852 (151,002) 

Total Adjustments 1,106,841 (7,100,184) 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 3,293,418 $ (7,171,435) $ 

NONCASH OPERATING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Gain on Extinguishment of Paycheck Protection Program Loan 1,893,667 $ -$ 

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 
(7) 



   
    

    

 

      

 

          
           

        
        

          
         

        
 

      
     

 
      

  
 

        
        

          
       

      
 

   

       
     

       
      

      
 

      
          

 
         

  
 

        
      

         
       

 
  

    
       

         
        
          

   

KIPP ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Nature of Operations 

KIPP Academy Charter School (the School) is an education corporation that operates as a 
charter school in the borough of the Bronx, New York City. On May 4, 2000, the Board of 
Regents of the City of New York for and on behalf of the State Education Department, 
granted the School a provisional charter valid for a term of five years from the effective date 
of September 1, 2000 and renewable upon expiration. The provisional charter was renewed 
on April 14, 2015 and is effective through June 30, 2019. In June 2019, an additional five-
year renewal was granted for the School’s charter through June 30, 2024. 

The School’s mission is to prepare students with the academic and character skills 
necessary to succeed in high school, college, and the competitive world beyond. 

In fiscal years 2021 and 2020, the School operated classes for students in grades 
kindergarten through twelve. 

The major source of revenue and support for the School is from state and local funding on a 
per pupil basis. The New York City Department of Food Services provides free and reduced-
price lunches and the New York City Department of Transportation provides transportation 
vouchers directly to a majority of the School’s students. Amounts with respect to these items 
are not included in these financial statements. 

Financial Statement Presentation 

The financial statements of the School have been prepared on the accrual basis of 
accounting in accordance with established accounting standards for nonprofit entities. The 
financial statements have been prepared to focus on the School as a whole and to present 
balances and transactions according to the existence or absence of donor-imposed 
restrictions. Accordingly, net assets and changes therein are classified as follows: 

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions - Net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations 
will be met either by actions of the School or by the passage of time. 

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions - Net assets not subject to donor-imposed 
stipulations. 

Revenue is reported as an increase in net assets without donor restrictions unless their use 
is restricted by explicit donor-imposed stipulation or by law. Expenses are reported as 
decreases in net assets without donor restrictions. Expiration of restrictions on net assets 
are reported as net assets released from restrictions. 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported 
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ 
from those estimates. 

(8) 



   
    

    

 

       

   

      
 

  

          
        
         

       
 

  

    
          

      
     

 
       

        
       

  
 

          
    

 

        
           

        
        

         
            

       

  

         
       
       

          
  

 
      

           
       

 

 

KIPP ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents consist of demand deposits. 

Grants and Contract Receivables 

Grants and contract receivables primarily consist of amounts due from the New York 
Department of Education for federal and state subsidy programs and private grants. Grants 
and contract receivables are stated at the amount management expects to collect from 
outstanding balances. As of June 30, 2021 and 2020, no allowance was warranted. 

Governmental Funding 

Revenue from the state and local governments resulting from the School’s charter status is 
based on the number of students enrolled. The revenue is recorded when services are 
performed in accordance with the charter agreement. Federal and state funds are 
recognized by the School when the conditions are met. 

Revenue from other government grants to which the School is entitled is recognized mostly 
on student enrollment. Some grants are provided for specific educational endeavors which 
are not based on student enrollment and are recorded when conditions are met by the grant 
agreement. 

Federal and state funds received prior to the services provided or the related expenditures 
being incurred are deferred and recorded as refundable advances. 

Contributions 

The School reports gifts of cash and other assets as restricted support if they are received 
with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets. When a donor restriction 
expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is 
accomplished, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to net assets without 
restrictions and reported in the statements of activities as net assets released from 
restrictions. A contribution is conditional if a right of return or right of release exists as well 
as a barrier. The conditional contribution is recognized once the conditions have been met. 

Donated Goods and Services 

Donated goods and services are recorded at their fair value when such services are 
rendered or goods are donated. Contributed services are recognized as contributions if the 
services: (a) create or enhance nonfinancial assets or (b) required specialized skills and are 
performed by people with those skills and would otherwise be purchased by the School and 
(c) are measurable. 

A number of volunteers have made a contribution of their time to the School. These in-kind 
contributions have not been reflected in the financial statements since they do not meet the 
criteria for recognition under accounting standards for contributions. 

(9) 



   
    

    

 

       

   

            
        

         
     

 
        

    
 

   

     
         

        
 

 
  

        
   

        
        

       
 

 
  

     
        

        
        

       
 

 
            

         
   

 

     
  

 

       
      

   
 

KIPP ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Equipment, Improvements, Depreciation, and Amortization 

Equipment is recorded at cost. The School capitalizes purchases of equipment in excess of 
$2,500. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful 
lives of the respective assets. Equipment acquired with certain government contract funds 
are recorded as expenses when the grantor retains title. 

Improvements to the facility are amortized over the useful life as there is no set lease term 
for the school building. 

Allocation of Functional Expenses 

The costs of providing services have been summarized on a functional basis in the 
statements of activities and in the statements of functional expenses. Allocation of expenses 
to program services and supporting services is completed by direct expenses related to 
each function. 

Concentration of Credit Risk 

The School maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts which, at times, may exceed 
federally insured limits. 

Income Taxes 

The School is exempt from federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal 
Revenue Code (IRC) and applicable income tax regulations of the state of New York. No 
provision for income taxes has been established, as the School has no unrelated business 
activity. 

Uncertain Tax Positions 

The School recognizes and measures its unrecognized tax benefits in accordance with 
FASB ASC 740, Income Taxes. Using that guidance, tax positions initially need to be 
recognized in the financial statements when it is more likely than not that the positions will 
be sustained upon examination by the taxing authorities. It also provides guidance for 
derecognition, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure 
and transition. 

As of June 30, 2021, the School had no uncertain tax positions that qualified for either 
recognition or disclosure in the financial statements. Additionally, the School had no interest 
or penalties related to income taxes. 

Reclassifications 

Certain prior year financial statement amounts have been reclassified to conform to the 
current year presentation. 

Subsequent Events 

In preparing these financial statements, the School has evaluated events and transactions 
for potential recognition or disclosure through November 1, 2021, the date the financial 
statements were available to be issued. 

(10) 



   
    

    

 

  

         
       

       
        

          
        

     
       

 
          

           
 

           
                       

         

 
 

    

       
    

          
          

          
  

 
           

 
        

        
    

         
     

              
        

 
           

       
            

 
          

        
     

      
 

KIPP ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 

NOTE 2 LIQUIDITY 

The School regularly monitors liquidity required to meet its operating needs and 
commitments, while also striving to maximize the investment of available funds. For 
purposes of analyzing resources available to meet general expenditures over the next year, 
the School considers all expenditures related to its ongoing school activities of teaching, 
educating, and other school activities. In addition to financial assets available to meet 
general expenditures over the next year, the School operates with a balanced budget and 
anticipates collecting sufficient revenue from state and local per pupil subsidy, federal and 
state grants and contributions in the next fiscal year to cover general expenditures. 

As of June 30, 2021 and 2020, the following financial assets could be readily made available 
within one year of the statement of financial position date to meet general expenditures: 

2021 2020 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 2,832,390 $ 2,486,241 $ 
Receivables 390,668 525,665 

Total 3,223,058 $ 3,011,906 $ 

NOTE 3 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

The Knowledge is Power Program Foundation (KIPP Foundation) is a national, nonprofit 
organization that trains school leaders to open and run academically rigorous public 
schools. The School is a member of KIPP Foundation’s KIPP Network of Schools and, as 
such, is eligible for a range of benefits and fee-based services. KIPP Foundation charges a 
license fee to all of the KIPP Charter Schools. See Note 11 for additional information about 
the license fee agreement. 

KIPP NYC, LLC (LLC) is the sole member of KIPP New York, Inc. (KNYI). 

LLC is considered a related party due to the usage of the LLC shared services team who 
handles the back-office functions for the School. In July 2009, the School entered into a 
shared services fee agreement with LLC for the back-office functions. The management fee 
is 12% of the revenue as defined in the shared services agreement. The School incurred a 
management fee to LLC in the amount of $2,515,219 and $2,241,999 for the years ended 
June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively. The amount due to LLC for shared services as of 
June 30, 2021 and 2020 was $170,697 and $65,140, respectively. 

KNYI is the sole member of KTC NYC, LLC (KTC). Amounts due to and from related parties 
represent short-term timing differences of grants received and expenses incurred on behalf 
of the School that have not been paid or received as of the financial statement date. 

KTC is considered a related party due to the services they provide to the KIPP New York 
charter schools and school alumni to prepare them for college. The services KTC provides 
are college advisory, counseling and placement, transition programs, college scholars and 
career preparation. There were no transactions between KTC and the School during the 
year. 

(11) 



   
    

    

 

     

        
          

      
          

          
      

 
      

   
 

       
          

            
        

 
 

     

     
 

                     
                

            
                      
                

               
                 

 
   

        
          

         
          

               
       

 
      

       
             

          
        

        

KIPP ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 

NOTE 3 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) 

KIPP NYC Facilities II LLC (Facilities) is a single member limited liability company with KIPP 
NYC Facility Holdings, Inc. as its sole member. KIPP NYC Facility Holdings Inc. is a 
Delaware nonstock charitable membership corporation with a mission of securing long-term 
facilities for KIPP charter schools operating in New York City. KNYI, the School, and KIPP 
NYC Public Charter Schools are members of KIPP NYC Facility Holdings Inc. The School 
had no transactions with Facilities during the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020. 

The School and KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools share some common membership on 
their board of directors. 

Amounts due to and from related parties represent short-term timing differences of 
expenses incurred on behalf of the School that have not been paid or received as of the 
financial statement date. As of June 30, 2021 and 2020, the School owed various related 
parties a total of $2,062,579 and $1,344,727, respectively. 

NOTE 4 EQUIPMENT AND IMPROVEMENTS 

Equipment and improvements consist of the following: 

2021 2020 
Furniture and Fixtures 98,020 $ 98,020 $ 
Technology 1,953,823 1,953,823 
Leasehold Improvements 744,635 744,635 
Equipment 260,678 260,678 

Total 3,057,156 3,057,156 
Less: Accumulated Depreciation and Amortization (2,833,865) (2,662,724) 

Total Equipment and Improvements 223,291 $ 394,432 $ 

NOTE 5 LOANS PAYABLE 

In July 2019, the School entered into a $5,500,000 Revolver Agreement with KIPP New 
York, Inc. The purpose of the Agreement is to provide cash flow relief to meet operational 
expenses. The interest rate on funds borrowed under the Agreement is 2.12% and it 
expired May 31, 2020. During May 2020, an amendment to the agreement was completed 
with an updated interest rate of 0.9% and a maturity date as of May 30, 2023. As of June 30, 
2021 and 2020, the total amount outstanding was $4,000,000 and $5,000,000, respectively. 

In May 2020, the School received a loan in the amount of $1,877,567 to fund payroll through 
the Paycheck Protection Program (the PPP Loan). The School recorded the loan as long-
term debt under ASC 470 as of June 30, 2020. The PPP Loan bears interest at 1% per 
annum. During the year ended June 30, 2021, the Small Business Administration formally 
forgave the loan in full along with interest of $16,100, therefore, the School recorded a gain 
on extinguishment of debt on the accompanying statement of activities. 

(12) 



   
    

    

 

    

          
 

 
                    

        
     

 
      

        
 

 
                          

                           
                                           

                                             
                    

 
 

      

         
 

 
                       

                                       
                                      

                                      
                                     

                    

 
 

   

         
           

           
       

     
  

KIPP ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 

NOTE 5 LOANS PAYABLE (CONTINUED) 

Minimum loan payments for each year subsequent to June 30, 2021 are as follows: 

Year Ending June 30, Amount 
2022 -$ 
2023 4,000,000 
Total 4,000,000 $ 

NOTE 6 RESTRICTIONS ON NET ASSET BALANCES 

Net assets with donor restrictions were available for the following purposes at June 30: 

2021 2020 
Purpose Restrictions: 

Arts and Music Programs 2,365 $ 2,365 $ 
Academic Programs 44,156 47,480 
Athletic Programs 53 -
Emergency Assistance Fund 35 -

Total 46,609 $ 49,845 $ 

NOTE 7 RESTRICTION RELEASES ON NET ASSET BALANCES 

Net assets with donor restrictions were released for the following purposes at June 30: 

2021 2020 
Purpose Restrictions: 

Academic Programs 4,566 $ 16,521 $ 
Student Food - 1,897 
Athletics - 3,154 
Emergency Assistance Fund 13,230 -
Opportunity Fund 72,973 -

Total 90,769 $ 21,572 $ 

NOTE 8 PENSION PLAN 

The School is part of the KIPP NYC 403(b) Retirement Plan, a multiemployer defined 
contribution plan, under Section 403(b) of the IRC which employees of the School can elect 
to contribute. Employees, whom option for this plan, can contribute up to the level set by the 
Internal Revenue Service. The Employer match is a discretionary contribution. The employer 
contributions to this Plan amounted $163,683 and $146,666 for the years ended June 30, 
2021 and 2020, respectively. 

(13) 



   
    

    

 

    

         
       

        
      

            
          

       
     

 
 

    

        
             

        
       

      
           

 
         

 
 

          
             

         

 
   

       
             

         
       

      
       

 
       

        
             

        
     
      

 

KIPP ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 

NOTE 8 PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED) 

The School also contributes to the Teachers Retirement System of the City of New York, a 
multiemployer defined benefit pension plan (the Plan), on behalf of the eligible teachers. The 
Plan provides New York City educators with retirement, disability, and death benefit 
services. The School’s participation in the Plan constitutes less than 1% of total Plan 
contributions. The funded status of the Plan was 69.3% at June 30, 2018, the date of the 
most recent actuarial calculation as indicated in the June 30, 2020 plan audit. The amount 
charged to operations for contributions to this Plan amounted to $523,166 and $554,859 for 
the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively. 

NOTE 9 CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS 

In September 2018, the School and KIPP NYC Public Charter School entered into a lease 
for computer equipment under a capital lease that expires in 2023. As of June 30, 2021 and 
2020, the leased equipment are reflected at a cost of $317,586 and related accumulated 
depreciation of $210,382 and $156,781, respectively. The lease requires annual payments 
of principal of $53,602. The capital lease agreement states the total annual payments are 
equal to the cost value of the leased equipment and no interest is included in the payments. 

Future minimum payments under the capital lease as of June 30, 2021 are as follows: 

Year Ending June 30, Amount 
2022 53,602 $ 
2023 53,601 

Total Capital Lease Payments 107,203 $ 

NOTE 10 SCHOOL FACILITY 

The School occupies three facilities to support its operations. Approximately 25,000 square 
feet of dedicated and shared space located at 250 East 156th St. in the South Bronx, New 
York is occupied through an agreement with the New York City Department of Education, 
which provides the space at no cost. The School is responsible for any overtime-related 
costs for services provided beyond regular opening hours. These costs have been included 
in building costs in the accompanying statements of functional expenses. 

The School also jointly occupies approximately 132,500 square feet of space at 201 East 
144th St. in the South Bronx where the joint high school for KIPP Academy Charter School 
and KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools resides. The facility was provided to the School at no 
cost, but the School must provide for continuing maintenance and operating expenses. The 
expenses are also included in building costs in the accompanying statements of functional 
expenses. The School also occupies the Mott Haven Facility. 

(14) 



   
    

    

 

    

    
         

          
      

 
 

   

     
  

    
 

   
 

     

         
      

       
  

 
 

  

   
         
         
 

 

    
           
     

 
 

  

         
         

        
         
       

 
 

KIPP ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 

NOTE 11 TRADEMARK LICENSE AGREEMENT 

The School has entered into a trademark license agreement with KIPP Foundation subject 
to a license fee of 1% per pupil operating revenue not to exceed $30,000 per elementary 
school, middle school, or high school. For the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, the 
School incurred licensing fees amounting to $36,586 and $36,399, respectively. 

NOTE 12 OPERATING EXPENSES 

Operating expenses are presented in the statements of functional expenses, classified 
according to the significant program activity related to the purpose for which the school 
exists or supporting service. 

The significant activities are: 

Program Services – Regular Education and Special Education 

Represents work (time and materials) that is specifically related to or necessary for the 
programming aspects of the School under the regular education and special education 
areas. The activities and related costs directly affecting students or parents fall under these 
program areas. 

Support Services 

Management and General 

Time and materials relating to operating the nonprogrammatic/back-end operational 
functions of the School are reflected as management and general expenses. These 
expenses include, but are not limited to, human resources, finance, and technology 
activities. 

Fundraising 

Represents work (time and materials) associated with the School’s fundraising program 
including but not limited to annual mailings, donor meeting, and events. The fundraising 
expenses were incurred by KIPP NYC, LLC. 

NOTE 13 CONTINGENCY 

Certain grants and contracts may be subject to audit by the funding sources. Such audits 
might result in disallowances of costs submitted for reimbursement. Management is of the 
opinion that such cost disallowances, if any, will not have a material effect on the 
accompanying financial statements for such potential claims. Accordingly, no amounts have 
been provided in the accompanying financial statements for such potential claims. 

(15) 





   
        

    

 

   

         
       
         

        
 

 
 

   

       
         

        
        

    
 
 

      

       
            
      

       
 
 

     

         
  

 
 

KIPP ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

NOTE 1 GENERAL INFORMATION 

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards presents the activities of the 
federal financial assistance programs of KIPP Academy Charter School (the School). 
Financial awards received directly from federal agencies, as well as financial assistance 
passed through other governmental agencies or nonprofit organizations, are included in the 
schedule. 

NOTE 2 BASIS OF PRESENTATION 

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant 
activity of the School and is presented on the accrual basis of accounting. The information in 
this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of 
Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and 
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards. 

NOTE 3 RELATIONSHIP TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The schedule of expenditures of federal awards presents only a selected portion of the 
activities of the School. It is not intended to, nor does it, present either the balance sheet, 
revenue, expenditures, or changes in net assets. The financial activity for the 
aforementioned awards is reported in the School’s statements of activities. 

NOTE 4 INDIRECT COST RATE 

KIPP Academy Charter School has elected not to use the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate 
allowed under the Uniform Guidance. 

(17) 





 
    

 

   

        
        

        
           

         
        

      
 

 

            
           
          

      
       

 
 

 
 

  
  

 

Board of Directors 
KIPP Academy Charter School 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether KIPP Academy Charter School’s financial 
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have 
a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an 
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do 
not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other 
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and 
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 

Plymouth Meeting, Pennsylvania 
November 1, 2021 

(19) 



        
      

 

 

        
       

     
 
 
 

  
  

  
 
 

      

       
      

           
            

       
 

         
    

 
  

         
             

    
           

          
          

          
      

       
         
         

      
 

          
         

  
 

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 
CLAconnect.com 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR 
FEDERAL PROGRAM AND REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 

COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 

Board of Directors 
KIPP Academy Charter School 
Bronx, New York 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited KIPP Academy Charter School’s compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material 
effect on each of KIPP Academy Charter School’s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 
2021. KIPP Academy Charter School’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of 
auditors’ results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

Management’s Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grants applicable to its federal programs. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of KIPP Academy Charter School’s 
major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. 
We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of 
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost 
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the 
Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a 
direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test 
basis, evidence about KIPP Academy Charter School’s compliance with those requirements and 
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major 
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of KIPP Academy Charter 
School’s compliance. 

CLA is an independent member of Nexia International, a leading, global network of independent 
accounting and consulting firms. See nexia.com/member-firm-disclaimer for details. 

(20) 
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Board of Directors 
KIPP Academy Charter School 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

In our opinion, KIPP Academy Charter School complied, in all material respects, with the types of 
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its 
major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2021. 

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

Management of KIPP Academy Charter School is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective 
internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In 
planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered KIPP Academy Charter School’s 
internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material 
effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program 
and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but 
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. 
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of KIPP Academy Charter School’s 
internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their 
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over 
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such 
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement 
of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant 
deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less 
severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit 
attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, 
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over compliance and the result of that testing based on the requirements of 
the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 

Plymouth Meeting, Pennsylvania 
November 1, 2021 

(21) 



   
     

     

 

    

 
 

 
       

 
      

 
            

 
   

    
         

   
             

 
 

 
 

      
 

                

   
   

                               
 

     
    

 
      

     
                      

 
 

    
 
     
 
         

    
   

 
 

       
 

                     
 

KIPP ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

Section I – Summary of Auditors’ Results 

Financial Statements 

1. Type of auditors’ report issued: Unmodified 

2. Internal control over financial reporting: 

Material weakness(es) identified? yes X no 

Significant deficiency(ies) identified 
that are not considered to be 
material weakness(es)? yes X none reported 

3. Noncompliance material to financial 
statements noted? yes X no 

Federal Awards 

1. Internal control over major federal programs: 

Material weakness(es) identified? yes X no 

Significant deficiency(ies) identified 
that are not considered to be 
material weakness(es)? yes X none reported 

2. Type of auditors’ report issued on 
compliance for major federal programs: Unmodified 

3. Any audit findings disclosed that are required 
to be reported in accordance with 
2 CFR 200.516(a)? yes X no 

Identification of Major Federal Programs 

CFDA Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster 

84.425D U.S. Department of Education – Elementary and 
Secondary School Emergency Relief Fund 
(ESSER I and ESSER II) 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between 
Type A or Type B programs was: $ 750,000 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X yes no 

(22) 



  
     

     

 

 
     

 
         

 
 
 

       

 
          

  

    

 
         

 
 
 

KIPP ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

Section II – Financial Statement Findings 

Our audit did not disclose any matters required to be reported in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards. 

Section III – Findings and Questioned Costs – Major Federal Programs 

Our audit did not disclose any matters required to be reported in accordance with the Federal Single 
Audit Act. 

Section IV – Prior Audit Findings 

There were no prior year findings required to be reported under the Federal Single Audit Act. 

(23) 





       
    

 

 
  

  

       
          

      
         

          
          

        
    

 

  

  

         
    

  

       
 

          
        

   

  

         

        
       

          
  

 
     

         
       

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 
CLAconnect.com 

Board of Directors 
KIPP Academy Charter School 
Bronx, New York 

We have audited the financial statements of KIPP Academy Charter School as of and for the year 
ended June 30, 2021, and have issued our report thereon dated November 1, 2021. We have 
previously communicated to you information about our responsibilities under auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America, Government Auditing Standards, and Title 2 U.S. 
Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and 
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance), as well as certain information related to 
the planned scope and timing of our audit. Professional standards also require that we communicate to 
you the following information related to our audit. 

Significant audit findings 

Qualitative aspects of accounting practices 

Accounting policies 

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant 
accounting policies used by KIPP Academy Charter School are described in Note 1 to the financial 
statements. 

No new accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed 
during 2021. 

We noted no transactions entered into by the entity during the year for which there is a lack of 
authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial 
statements in the proper period. 

Accounting estimates 

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are 

about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their 
significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them 
may differ significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimates affecting the financial 
statements were: 

Education Department is based on 
amounts anticipated to be received from the state for various aid entitlements for fiscal 2020-
2021. Due to the timing of the review and approval of the reimbursements, the actual 
reimbursement may differ from the estimate. Management expects any differences between 
estimated and actual amounts will be insignificant. 

CLA is an independent member of Nexia International, a leading, global network of independent 
accounting and consulting firms. See nexia.com/member-firm-disclaimer for details. 

http:CLAconnect.com


 
   

 
 

 

            
          

         
   

        

   
       

         
          

    

  

      
       

      

     

       
 

  

    
          

    

  

            
         

 

           
           

      
      

  

Board of Directors 
KIPP Academy Charter School 
Page 2 

based on historical information, vendor information, and other sources. The useful life of a 
depreciable asset determines the amount of depreciation that will be recorded in any given 
reporting period as well as the amount of accumulated depreciation that is reported at the end of 
a reporting period. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop depreciation 
in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. 

location of expenses shared between programs, 
management and general, and fundraising is based on a reasonable and consistent basis using 
factors such as direct payroll allocation and percentage breakdown for certain programs. We 
evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the allocation in determining that it 
is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. 

Financial statement disclosures 

Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to 
financial statement users. There were no particularly sensitive financial statement disclosures. 

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear. 

Difficulties encountered in performing the audit 

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our 
audit. 

Uncorrected misstatements 

Professional standards require us to accumulate all misstatements identified during the audit, other 
than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. 
Management has corrected all such misstatements. 

Corrected misstatements 

None of the misstatements detected as a result of audit procedures and corrected by management 
were material, either individually or in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole. 

Disagreements with management 

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or 
auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial 

Management representations 

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management 
representation letter dated November 1, 2021. 



 
   

 
 

 

   

         

            
         

       

         

        
  

     

         
       

            
        

          
        

            
         

            
          
    

 
 

 
 

  

 
  

 

Board of Directors 
KIPP Academy Charter School 
Page 3 

Management consultations with other independent accountants 

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and 

require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant 
facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants. 

Significant issues discussed with management prior to engagement 

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and 

these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses 
were not a condition to our engagement. 

Other information in documents containing audited financial statements 

With respect to the schedule of expenditures of federal awards (SEFA) accompanying the financial 
statements, on which we were engaged to report in relation to the financial statements as a whole, we 
made certain inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the 
SEFA to determine that the SEFA complies with the requirements of the Uniform Guidance, the method 
of preparing it has not changed from the prior period or the reasons for such changes, and the SEFA is 
appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements. We compared and 
reconciled the SEFA to the underlying accounting records used to prepare the financial statements or 
to the financial statements themselves. We have issued our report thereon dated November 1, 2021. 

* * * 

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of the board of directors and 
management of KIPP Academy Charter School and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by 
anyone other than these specified parties. 

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 

Plymouth Meeting, Pennsylvania 
November 1, 2021 































 
 

  

    

 

   
     

   
      

      
    

     
  

  
    

   
  

 

 

     
      

  

 

     
    

  

 
   
     

      
 

Conflicts of Interest Policy 

KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools & KIPP Academy Charter School 

Purpose: 

KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools has 
adopted a Code of Ethics setting forth for the guidance of trustees, officers and employees the 
standards of conduct expected of them, including standards with respect to disclosure of 
conflicts of interest regarding any matter brought or required to be brought before their 
respective Boards. The Conflict of Interest Policy is part of the Codes of Ethics adopted by each 
of the Corporations. It provides procedures for addressing, disclosing, and documenting 
conflicts of interest as such term in used in §§ 800 through 806 of the New York State General 

-a of the Not-for-Profit Corporation 
Law. It also includes procedures for addressing Related Party Transactions, as such term is 
defined in § 102 (24) of the Not-for-Profit Corporation Law. The Policy supplements, and does 
not replace any applicable provisions of the General Municipal Law and other state and federal 
laws governing conflicts of interest. It applies to all Trustees, Officers and Key Employees of 

Definitions: 

Affiliate 
Corporation. 

Audit Committee ns the Audit Committee of the Corporation, as described in the By-laws 
of the Corporation. The Audit Committee is comprised of at least three Trustees who are 
Independent Directors as defined in § 102 (21) of the Not-for-Profit Corporation Law and in this 
Policy. 

Board 

Compensation 
that is valued at $75 or more is expressly prohibited by the Municipal Law when offered to a 
Trustee, Officer or Key Employee in connection with official duties, but gifts of lesser value may 
also be subject to this policy. 

 refers to each of the KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools which have adopted this 
policy and which are Education Corporations and, as such, subject to provisions of the Not-for-
Profit Corporation Law made applicable to education corporations by § 216-a of the Education 
Law.  Each Corporation, as a chartered entity, is also subject to the Conflict of Interest 
Provisions of §§ 800 through 806 of the General Municipal Law, 
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Financial Interest 
receive an economic benefit, directly or indirectly, from such transaction or compensation 
agreement. 

Independent Director Trustee who (i) is not, and has not been within the last three 
years, an employee of the Corporation or an Affiliate and does not have a Relative who is, or 
has been within the last three years, a Key Employee of the Corporation  or of an Affiliate; (ii) 
has not received, and does not have a Relative who has received, in any of the last three fiscal 
years, more than $10,000 in direct compensation from the Corporation or from an Affiliate 
(other than reimbursement for expenses reasonably incurred as a Trustee, Officer or Key 
Employee); and (iii) is not a current employee of, or does not have a substantial financial 
interest in, and does not have a Relative who is a current officer of or who has a substantial 
financial interest in, any entity that has made payments to, or received payments from the 
Corporation or from an Affiliate for property or services in an amount which, in any of the last 

revenues. For these purpos 

Key Employee 
substantial influence over the Corporation, as defined from time to time by the Corporation, or 
who has or shares authority to control or determine a substantial portion of the operating 
budgets of the Corporation or the schools or compensation for employees. 

Related Party 
Affiliate; (2) A Relative of any Trustee, Officer, or Key Employee of the Corporation or an 
Affiliate or (3) any entity in which any individual described in clause (1) or (2) of this definition 
has a 35% or greater ownership or beneficial interest, except that in the case of a partnership 
or professional corporation, a Related Party will include an entity in which any individual 
described in clause (1) or (2) above has a direct or indirect ownership interest in excess of 5%. 

Related Party Transaction ion or agreement or other kind of arrangement 
between the Corporation and a Related Party or an entity in which the Related Party has an 
interest. Related Party Transactions are subject to special provisions for disclosure, evaluation 
and documentation. In addition, certain Related Party Transactions are subject to limitations 
described in the Municipal Law. These special provisions and limitations are summarized in this 
Policy. 

Relative ic Health Law 
§2994-a, ancestors, siblings (whether whole or half-blood), children (whether natural or 
adopted), grandchildren, great grandchildren and spouses or domestic partners of ancestors, 
siblings, children, grandchildren, and great-grandchildren. Children of siblings and their spouses 
and partners will also be considered Relatives under this Policy. 

School 
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Corporation as described in the By-laws.  

What is a Conflict of Interest? 

financial interests of a Trustee, Officer or Key Employee diverge or may potentially diverge from 
the interests of the Corporation.  A conflict of interest will arise when a transaction involving 
the Corporation could financially harm or benefit a person covered by this Policy, but a conflict 
of interest does not always involve financial interests.  A conflict may also involve the use of the 
services or facilities of the Corporation or may involve the use of staff assistance for purposes 
other than carrying out professional or fiduciary duties. 

Conflicts may also arise if a Trustee, Officer or Key Employee is asked to communicate on behalf 
of a person or firm with the Corporation. Accordingly, a Trustee, Officer or Key Employee may 
not communicate with the Board or a School on behalf of a person or a firm, unless requested 
to do so by the Corporation, and shall avoid engaging in activities that would appear to be 
unduly influenced by other persons who have a special interest in matters under consideration 
by the Trustee of the Corporation or employees of one of the Schools.  If a Trustee, Officer or 
Key Employee inadvertently engages in such activities, he/she shall promptly notify the Board in 
writing of such activities and shall disclose all known facts prior to participating in a Board 
discussion of these matters. 

Disclosure of Conflicts of Interest: 

Written disclosure of all potential Conflicts of Interest is required of Trustees, Officers and Key 
Employees prior to election or appointment and annually thereafter.  However, Conflicts of 
Interest may arise between annual updates and, accordingly, an individual with a duality of 
interest shall disclose the potential Conflict (a) prior to voting on or otherwise discharging his or 
her duties with respect to any matter involving the potential Conflict; (b) prior to entering into 
any contract or transaction involving the Corporation; and (c) as soon as possible after he or she 
learns of an actual or potential Conflict of Interest. Disclosure of the material facts surrounding 
the Conflict of Interest shall be made to the Chairperson of the Board and the Chairperson of 
the Audit Committee. The interested Trustee or Officer shall thereafter refrain from 
participating in deliberations and decisions relating to the matter unless he or she is asked for 
information by the Chairperson of the Board or the Audit Committee. 

The existence and resolution (as applicable) of any reported Conflict of Interest shall be 
documented in the appropriate records of the Corporation, including in the minutes of any 
meeting at which the Conflict of Interest was discussed and voted upon. 

A Key Employee who wishes to use staff assistance, services or facilities for purposes other than 
carrying out professional responsibilities will disclose the Conflict to the Principal of the School 
who will exercise discretion in allowing or disallowing the proposed use in accordance with this 
Policy. 
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Annual Statements: 

Without limiting the general and continuing disclosure obligation set forth in the preceding 
section, the Chairperson of the Audit Committee shall distribute annually to all Trustees, 
Officers and Key Employees, a form soliciting the disclosure of all potential Conflicts of 
Interests, including specific information concerning the terms of any contract or transaction 
with the Corporation and whether the applicable processes set forth in this Policy were used. 
Each Trustee, Officer and Key Employee shall also annually sign a statement included with the 
form distributed by the Corporation which affirms such person: 

a. has received a copy of this Policy; 

b. has read and understands this Policy, and 

c. has agreed to comply with this Policy. 

Written disclosures shall be submitted to and reviewed by the Chairperson of the Board and the 
Chairperson of the Audit Committee. 

Related Party Transactions: 

A Related Party Transaction is a transaction in which the Corporation is a party and a Related 
Party (as defined above) has a financial interest or another material interest. All rules and 
principles related to disclosure of Conflicts of Interest apply to Related Party Transactions, but 
in addition, the Trustees must initiate a formal Audit Committee review or a review by a 
quorum of the Board consisting of Independent Trustees. 

Any Trustee, Officer or Key Employee with an interest in a Related Party Transaction shall make 
a good faith disclosure of all material facts related to such interest to the Audit Committee.  The 
Audit Committee shall review all the material facts related to the proposed Related Party 
Transaction and request any additional information that it deems necessary to complete such 
review.  

The Municipal Law prohibits transactions between Charter Schools and for-profit business 
entities in which a member of the Board of Trustees or a Key Employee has an interest if such 
Trustee or Key Employee has certain enumerated responsibilities. Accordingly, the Audit 
Committee will first determine whether or not the Trustee, Officer or Key Employee who has an 
interest in any proposed contract with a for-profit entity, has the power or duty, individually or 
as a member of the Board, to (1) negotiate, prepare, authorize or approve the contract or 
authorize payment thereunder; (2) audit bills or claims under the contract; or (3) appoint an 
officer or employee who has any of these powers or duties. If the interested Trustee, Officer or 
Key Employee does not have any of the enumerated responsibilities or if the proposed contract 
is with a not-for-profit entity, or is otherwise authorized by § 802 of the Municipal Law, the 
Committee may continue its review. 
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If a Related Party Transaction is otherwise authorized a 
financial interest or other material interest in such transaction, as assessed by the Audit 
Committee, the Audit Committee shall consider alternative transactions to the proposed 
transaction and the Chairperson of the Committee shall, if appropriate, appoint a disinterested 
person or committee to investigate alternatives. The Committee, after reviewing any such 
alternatives, shall determine whether the Corporation can obtain, with reasonable efforts, a 
more advantageous transaction or arrangement from a person or entity that would not give 
rise to a conflict of interest.  

The Audit Committee shall after considering alternative transactions and/or comparability data, 
determine whether the transaction or arrangement is fair, reasonable, and in the best interest 
of the Corporation at the time of its decision. 

Following its review the Audit Committee may approve the transaction, or may refer the matter 
to the Board of Trustees for approval by the Board.  

Upon receiving a recommendation from the Audit Committee, the Board may accept the 
recommendation or make an independent determination as to whether the proposed 
transaction is fair, reasonable and in the best interests of the Corporation. Upon the affirmative 
vote of not less than a majority of independent Trustees present, the Trustees may authorize 
the transaction. 

At the time of any deliberation or decision by the Audit Committee or the Board concerning the 
authorization of a proposed Related Party Transaction, the interested Trustee, Officer or Key 
Employee shall not be present and shall not attempt to improperly influence any deliberations 
or voting, provided that the Board, or Audit Committee, may request such individual to provide 
information regarding the Related Party Transaction prior to the commencement of 
deliberations or voting. 

The minutes of the meeting of the Board and the Audit Committee that conducted the initial 
review shall provide contemporaneous documentation of the basis for approval, including the 

of the persons who were present for discussions and votes relating to the transaction or 
arrangement, the content of the discussion, and a record of any votes taken in connection with 
the proceedings. 

The Corporation shall not enter into a Related Party Transaction unless it is approved in 
accordance with this Policy. Any Related Party Transaction that is approved without 
complying with the procedure set forth in this section shall be void. 

Periodic Reviews 

To ensure that the KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools operate in a manner consistent with 
charitable purposes and do not engage in activities that could jeopardize tax-exempt status, 
periodic reviews shall be conducted by the Audit Committee of each Corporation. The Audit 
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Committee shall report to the Board of Trustees. The periodic reviews shall, at a minimum, 
include the following subjects: 

a. Whether compensation arrangements and benefits are fair and reasonable, based 
on competent survey information, and in the best interests of the Corporation. 

b. Whether any related party transactions or arrangements with or on behalf of the 
Corporation are properly recorded, reflect reasonable investment or payments for 
goods and services, further charitable purposes and do not result in inurement, 
impermissible private benefit or in an excess benefit transaction. 

Violations of the Conflicts of Interest Policy: 

If the Board has reasonable cause to believe that a Trustee, Officer or Key Employee has failed 
to disclose an actual or possible Conflict of Interest, it shall inform the individual of the basis for 
such belief and afford that person an opportunity to explain the alleged failure to disclose. If, 
after hearing the response and after making further investigation as warranted by the 
circumstances, the Board determines that the Trustee, Officer or Key Employee has failed to 
disclose an actual or possible Conflict of Interest, it shall take appropriate disciplinary and 
corrective action. 
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Conflicts of Interest Policy 

KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools & KIPP Academy Charter School 

Purpose: 

KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools has 
adopted a Code of Ethics setting forth for the guidance of trustees, officers and employees the 
standards of conduct expected of them, including standards with respect to disclosure of 
conflicts of interest regarding any matter brought or required to be brought before their 
respective Boards. The Conflict of Interest Policy is part of the Codes of Ethics adopted by each 
of the Corporations. It provides procedures for addressing, disclosing, and documenting 
conflicts of interest as such term in used in §§ 800 through 806 of the New York State General 

-a of the Not-for-Profit Corporation 
Law. It also includes procedures for addressing Related Party Transactions, as such term is 
defined in § 102 (24) of the Not-for-Profit Corporation Law. The Policy supplements, and does 
not replace any applicable provisions of the General Municipal Law and other state and federal 
laws governing conflicts of interest. It applies to all Trustees, Officers and Key Employees of 

Definitions: 

Affiliate 
Corporation. 

Audit Committee ns the Audit Committee of the Corporation, as described in the By-laws 
of the Corporation. The Audit Committee is comprised of at least three Trustees who are 
Independent Directors as defined in § 102 (21) of the Not-for-Profit Corporation Law and in this 
Policy. 

Board 

Compensation 
that is valued at $75 or more is expressly prohibited by the Municipal Law when offered to a 
Trustee, Officer or Key Employee in connection with official duties, but gifts of lesser value may 
also be subject to this policy. 

 refers to each of the KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools which have adopted this 
policy and which are Education Corporations and, as such, subject to provisions of the Not-for-
Profit Corporation Law made applicable to education corporations by § 216-a of the Education 
Law.  Each Corporation, as a chartered entity, is also subject to the Conflict of Interest 
Provisions of §§ 800 through 806 of the General Municipal Law, 
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Financial Interest 
receive an economic benefit, directly or indirectly, from such transaction or compensation 
agreement. 

Independent Director Trustee who (i) is not, and has not been within the last three 
years, an employee of the Corporation or an Affiliate and does not have a Relative who is, or 
has been within the last three years, a Key Employee of the Corporation  or of an Affiliate; (ii) 
has not received, and does not have a Relative who has received, in any of the last three fiscal 
years, more than $10,000 in direct compensation from the Corporation or from an Affiliate 
(other than reimbursement for expenses reasonably incurred as a Trustee, Officer or Key 
Employee); and (iii) is not a current employee of, or does not have a substantial financial 
interest in, and does not have a Relative who is a current officer of or who has a substantial 
financial interest in, any entity that has made payments to, or received payments from the 
Corporation or from an Affiliate for property or services in an amount which, in any of the last 

revenues. For these purpos 

Key Employee 
substantial influence over the Corporation, as defined from time to time by the Corporation, or 
who has or shares authority to control or determine a substantial portion of the operating 
budgets of the Corporation or the schools or compensation for employees. 

Related Party 
Affiliate; (2) A Relative of any Trustee, Officer, or Key Employee of the Corporation or an 
Affiliate or (3) any entity in which any individual described in clause (1) or (2) of this definition 
has a 35% or greater ownership or beneficial interest, except that in the case of a partnership 
or professional corporation, a Related Party will include an entity in which any individual 
described in clause (1) or (2) above has a direct or indirect ownership interest in excess of 5%. 

Related Party Transaction ion or agreement or other kind of arrangement 
between the Corporation and a Related Party or an entity in which the Related Party has an 
interest. Related Party Transactions are subject to special provisions for disclosure, evaluation 
and documentation. In addition, certain Related Party Transactions are subject to limitations 
described in the Municipal Law. These special provisions and limitations are summarized in this 
Policy. 

Relative ic Health Law 
§2994-a, ancestors, siblings (whether whole or half-blood), children (whether natural or 
adopted), grandchildren, great grandchildren and spouses or domestic partners of ancestors, 
siblings, children, grandchildren, and great-grandchildren. Children of siblings and their spouses 
and partners will also be considered Relatives under this Policy. 

School 
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Corporation as described in the By-laws.  

What is a Conflict of Interest? 

financial interests of a Trustee, Officer or Key Employee diverge or may potentially diverge from 
the interests of the Corporation.  A conflict of interest will arise when a transaction involving 
the Corporation could financially harm or benefit a person covered by this Policy, but a conflict 
of interest does not always involve financial interests.  A conflict may also involve the use of the 
services or facilities of the Corporation or may involve the use of staff assistance for purposes 
other than carrying out professional or fiduciary duties. 

Conflicts may also arise if a Trustee, Officer or Key Employee is asked to communicate on behalf 
of a person or firm with the Corporation. Accordingly, a Trustee, Officer or Key Employee may 
not communicate with the Board or a School on behalf of a person or a firm, unless requested 
to do so by the Corporation, and shall avoid engaging in activities that would appear to be 
unduly influenced by other persons who have a special interest in matters under consideration 
by the Trustee of the Corporation or employees of one of the Schools.  If a Trustee, Officer or 
Key Employee inadvertently engages in such activities, he/she shall promptly notify the Board in 
writing of such activities and shall disclose all known facts prior to participating in a Board 
discussion of these matters. 

Disclosure of Conflicts of Interest: 

Written disclosure of all potential Conflicts of Interest is required of Trustees, Officers and Key 
Employees prior to election or appointment and annually thereafter.  However, Conflicts of 
Interest may arise between annual updates and, accordingly, an individual with a duality of 
interest shall disclose the potential Conflict (a) prior to voting on or otherwise discharging his or 
her duties with respect to any matter involving the potential Conflict; (b) prior to entering into 
any contract or transaction involving the Corporation; and (c) as soon as possible after he or she 
learns of an actual or potential Conflict of Interest. Disclosure of the material facts surrounding 
the Conflict of Interest shall be made to the Chairperson of the Board and the Chairperson of 
the Audit Committee. The interested Trustee or Officer shall thereafter refrain from 
participating in deliberations and decisions relating to the matter unless he or she is asked for 
information by the Chairperson of the Board or the Audit Committee. 

The existence and resolution (as applicable) of any reported Conflict of Interest shall be 
documented in the appropriate records of the Corporation, including in the minutes of any 
meeting at which the Conflict of Interest was discussed and voted upon. 

A Key Employee who wishes to use staff assistance, services or facilities for purposes other than 
carrying out professional responsibilities will disclose the Conflict to the Principal of the School 
who will exercise discretion in allowing or disallowing the proposed use in accordance with this 
Policy. 
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Annual Statements: 

Without limiting the general and continuing disclosure obligation set forth in the preceding 
section, the Chairperson of the Audit Committee shall distribute annually to all Trustees, 
Officers and Key Employees, a form soliciting the disclosure of all potential Conflicts of 
Interests, including specific information concerning the terms of any contract or transaction 
with the Corporation and whether the applicable processes set forth in this Policy were used. 
Each Trustee, Officer and Key Employee shall also annually sign a statement included with the 
form distributed by the Corporation which affirms such person: 

a. has received a copy of this Policy; 

b. has read and understands this Policy, and 

c. has agreed to comply with this Policy. 

Written disclosures shall be submitted to and reviewed by the Chairperson of the Board and the 
Chairperson of the Audit Committee. 

Related Party Transactions: 

A Related Party Transaction is a transaction in which the Corporation is a party and a Related 
Party (as defined above) has a financial interest or another material interest. All rules and 
principles related to disclosure of Conflicts of Interest apply to Related Party Transactions, but 
in addition, the Trustees must initiate a formal Audit Committee review or a review by a 
quorum of the Board consisting of Independent Trustees. 

Any Trustee, Officer or Key Employee with an interest in a Related Party Transaction shall make 
a good faith disclosure of all material facts related to such interest to the Audit Committee.  The 
Audit Committee shall review all the material facts related to the proposed Related Party 
Transaction and request any additional information that it deems necessary to complete such 
review.  

The Municipal Law prohibits transactions between Charter Schools and for-profit business 
entities in which a member of the Board of Trustees or a Key Employee has an interest if such 
Trustee or Key Employee has certain enumerated responsibilities. Accordingly, the Audit 
Committee will first determine whether or not the Trustee, Officer or Key Employee who has an 
interest in any proposed contract with a for-profit entity, has the power or duty, individually or 
as a member of the Board, to (1) negotiate, prepare, authorize or approve the contract or 
authorize payment thereunder; (2) audit bills or claims under the contract; or (3) appoint an 
officer or employee who has any of these powers or duties. If the interested Trustee, Officer or 
Key Employee does not have any of the enumerated responsibilities or if the proposed contract 
is with a not-for-profit entity, or is otherwise authorized by § 802 of the Municipal Law, the 
Committee may continue its review. 
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If a Related Party Transaction is otherwise authorized a 
financial interest or other material interest in such transaction, as assessed by the Audit 
Committee, the Audit Committee shall consider alternative transactions to the proposed 
transaction and the Chairperson of the Committee shall, if appropriate, appoint a disinterested 
person or committee to investigate alternatives. The Committee, after reviewing any such 
alternatives, shall determine whether the Corporation can obtain, with reasonable efforts, a 
more advantageous transaction or arrangement from a person or entity that would not give 
rise to a conflict of interest.  

The Audit Committee shall after considering alternative transactions and/or comparability data, 
determine whether the transaction or arrangement is fair, reasonable, and in the best interest 
of the Corporation at the time of its decision. 

Following its review the Audit Committee may approve the transaction, or may refer the matter 
to the Board of Trustees for approval by the Board.  

Upon receiving a recommendation from the Audit Committee, the Board may accept the 
recommendation or make an independent determination as to whether the proposed 
transaction is fair, reasonable and in the best interests of the Corporation. Upon the affirmative 
vote of not less than a majority of independent Trustees present, the Trustees may authorize 
the transaction. 

At the time of any deliberation or decision by the Audit Committee or the Board concerning the 
authorization of a proposed Related Party Transaction, the interested Trustee, Officer or Key 
Employee shall not be present and shall not attempt to improperly influence any deliberations 
or voting, provided that the Board, or Audit Committee, may request such individual to provide 
information regarding the Related Party Transaction prior to the commencement of 
deliberations or voting. 

The minutes of the meeting of the Board and the Audit Committee that conducted the initial 
review shall provide contemporaneous documentation of the basis for approval, including the 

of the persons who were present for discussions and votes relating to the transaction or 
arrangement, the content of the discussion, and a record of any votes taken in connection with 
the proceedings. 

The Corporation shall not enter into a Related Party Transaction unless it is approved in 
accordance with this Policy. Any Related Party Transaction that is approved without 
complying with the procedure set forth in this section shall be void. 

Periodic Reviews 

To ensure that the KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools operate in a manner consistent with 
charitable purposes and do not engage in activities that could jeopardize tax-exempt status, 
periodic reviews shall be conducted by the Audit Committee of each Corporation. The Audit 
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Committee shall report to the Board of Trustees. The periodic reviews shall, at a minimum, 
include the following subjects: 

a. Whether compensation arrangements and benefits are fair and reasonable, based 
on competent survey information, and in the best interests of the Corporation. 

b. Whether any related party transactions or arrangements with or on behalf of the 
Corporation are properly recorded, reflect reasonable investment or payments for 
goods and services, further charitable purposes and do not result in inurement, 
impermissible private benefit or in an excess benefit transaction. 

Violations of the Conflicts of Interest Policy: 

If the Board has reasonable cause to believe that a Trustee, Officer or Key Employee has failed 
to disclose an actual or possible Conflict of Interest, it shall inform the individual of the basis for 
such belief and afford that person an opportunity to explain the alleged failure to disclose. If, 
after hearing the response and after making further investigation as warranted by the 
circumstances, the Board determines that the Trustee, Officer or Key Employee has failed to 
disclose an actual or possible Conflict of Interest, it shall take appropriate disciplinary and 
corrective action. 
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Conflicts of Interest Policy 

KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools & KIPP Academy Charter School 

Purpose: 

KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools has 
adopted a Code of Ethics setting forth for the guidance of trustees, officers and employees the 
standards of conduct expected of them, including standards with respect to disclosure of 
conflicts of interest regarding any matter brought or required to be brought before their 
respective Boards. The Conflict of Interest Policy is part of the Codes of Ethics adopted by each 
of the Corporations. It provides procedures for addressing, disclosing, and documenting 
conflicts of interest as such term in used in §§ 800 through 806 of the New York State General 

-a of the Not-for-Profit Corporation 
Law. It also includes procedures for addressing Related Party Transactions, as such term is 
defined in § 102 (24) of the Not-for-Profit Corporation Law. The Policy supplements, and does 
not replace any applicable provisions of the General Municipal Law and other state and federal 
laws governing conflicts of interest. It applies to all Trustees, Officers and Key Employees of 

Definitions: 

Affiliate 
Corporation. 

Audit Committee ns the Audit Committee of the Corporation, as described in the By-laws 
of the Corporation. The Audit Committee is comprised of at least three Trustees who are 
Independent Directors as defined in § 102 (21) of the Not-for-Profit Corporation Law and in this 
Policy. 

Board 

Compensation 
that is valued at $75 or more is expressly prohibited by the Municipal Law when offered to a 
Trustee, Officer or Key Employee in connection with official duties, but gifts of lesser value may 
also be subject to this policy. 

 refers to each of the KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools which have adopted this 
policy and which are Education Corporations and, as such, subject to provisions of the Not-for-
Profit Corporation Law made applicable to education corporations by § 216-a of the Education 
Law.  Each Corporation, as a chartered entity, is also subject to the Conflict of Interest 
Provisions of §§ 800 through 806 of the General Municipal Law, 
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Financial Interest 
receive an economic benefit, directly or indirectly, from such transaction or compensation 
agreement. 

Independent Director Trustee who (i) is not, and has not been within the last three 
years, an employee of the Corporation or an Affiliate and does not have a Relative who is, or 
has been within the last three years, a Key Employee of the Corporation  or of an Affiliate; (ii) 
has not received, and does not have a Relative who has received, in any of the last three fiscal 
years, more than $10,000 in direct compensation from the Corporation or from an Affiliate 
(other than reimbursement for expenses reasonably incurred as a Trustee, Officer or Key 
Employee); and (iii) is not a current employee of, or does not have a substantial financial 
interest in, and does not have a Relative who is a current officer of or who has a substantial 
financial interest in, any entity that has made payments to, or received payments from the 
Corporation or from an Affiliate for property or services in an amount which, in any of the last 

revenues. For these purpos 

Key Employee 
substantial influence over the Corporation, as defined from time to time by the Corporation, or 
who has or shares authority to control or determine a substantial portion of the operating 
budgets of the Corporation or the schools or compensation for employees. 

Related Party 
Affiliate; (2) A Relative of any Trustee, Officer, or Key Employee of the Corporation or an 
Affiliate or (3) any entity in which any individual described in clause (1) or (2) of this definition 
has a 35% or greater ownership or beneficial interest, except that in the case of a partnership 
or professional corporation, a Related Party will include an entity in which any individual 
described in clause (1) or (2) above has a direct or indirect ownership interest in excess of 5%. 

Related Party Transaction ion or agreement or other kind of arrangement 
between the Corporation and a Related Party or an entity in which the Related Party has an 
interest. Related Party Transactions are subject to special provisions for disclosure, evaluation 
and documentation. In addition, certain Related Party Transactions are subject to limitations 
described in the Municipal Law. These special provisions and limitations are summarized in this 
Policy. 

Relative ic Health Law 
§2994-a, ancestors, siblings (whether whole or half-blood), children (whether natural or 
adopted), grandchildren, great grandchildren and spouses or domestic partners of ancestors, 
siblings, children, grandchildren, and great-grandchildren. Children of siblings and their spouses 
and partners will also be considered Relatives under this Policy. 

School 
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Corporation as described in the By-laws.  

What is a Conflict of Interest? 

financial interests of a Trustee, Officer or Key Employee diverge or may potentially diverge from 
the interests of the Corporation.  A conflict of interest will arise when a transaction involving 
the Corporation could financially harm or benefit a person covered by this Policy, but a conflict 
of interest does not always involve financial interests.  A conflict may also involve the use of the 
services or facilities of the Corporation or may involve the use of staff assistance for purposes 
other than carrying out professional or fiduciary duties. 

Conflicts may also arise if a Trustee, Officer or Key Employee is asked to communicate on behalf 
of a person or firm with the Corporation. Accordingly, a Trustee, Officer or Key Employee may 
not communicate with the Board or a School on behalf of a person or a firm, unless requested 
to do so by the Corporation, and shall avoid engaging in activities that would appear to be 
unduly influenced by other persons who have a special interest in matters under consideration 
by the Trustee of the Corporation or employees of one of the Schools.  If a Trustee, Officer or 
Key Employee inadvertently engages in such activities, he/she shall promptly notify the Board in 
writing of such activities and shall disclose all known facts prior to participating in a Board 
discussion of these matters. 

Disclosure of Conflicts of Interest: 

Written disclosure of all potential Conflicts of Interest is required of Trustees, Officers and Key 
Employees prior to election or appointment and annually thereafter.  However, Conflicts of 
Interest may arise between annual updates and, accordingly, an individual with a duality of 
interest shall disclose the potential Conflict (a) prior to voting on or otherwise discharging his or 
her duties with respect to any matter involving the potential Conflict; (b) prior to entering into 
any contract or transaction involving the Corporation; and (c) as soon as possible after he or she 
learns of an actual or potential Conflict of Interest. Disclosure of the material facts surrounding 
the Conflict of Interest shall be made to the Chairperson of the Board and the Chairperson of 
the Audit Committee. The interested Trustee or Officer shall thereafter refrain from 
participating in deliberations and decisions relating to the matter unless he or she is asked for 
information by the Chairperson of the Board or the Audit Committee. 

The existence and resolution (as applicable) of any reported Conflict of Interest shall be 
documented in the appropriate records of the Corporation, including in the minutes of any 
meeting at which the Conflict of Interest was discussed and voted upon. 

A Key Employee who wishes to use staff assistance, services or facilities for purposes other than 
carrying out professional responsibilities will disclose the Conflict to the Principal of the School 
who will exercise discretion in allowing or disallowing the proposed use in accordance with this 
Policy. 
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Annual Statements: 

Without limiting the general and continuing disclosure obligation set forth in the preceding 
section, the Chairperson of the Audit Committee shall distribute annually to all Trustees, 
Officers and Key Employees, a form soliciting the disclosure of all potential Conflicts of 
Interests, including specific information concerning the terms of any contract or transaction 
with the Corporation and whether the applicable processes set forth in this Policy were used. 
Each Trustee, Officer and Key Employee shall also annually sign a statement included with the 
form distributed by the Corporation which affirms such person: 

a. has received a copy of this Policy; 

b. has read and understands this Policy, and 

c. has agreed to comply with this Policy. 

Written disclosures shall be submitted to and reviewed by the Chairperson of the Board and the 
Chairperson of the Audit Committee. 

Related Party Transactions: 

A Related Party Transaction is a transaction in which the Corporation is a party and a Related 
Party (as defined above) has a financial interest or another material interest. All rules and 
principles related to disclosure of Conflicts of Interest apply to Related Party Transactions, but 
in addition, the Trustees must initiate a formal Audit Committee review or a review by a 
quorum of the Board consisting of Independent Trustees. 

Any Trustee, Officer or Key Employee with an interest in a Related Party Transaction shall make 
a good faith disclosure of all material facts related to such interest to the Audit Committee.  The 
Audit Committee shall review all the material facts related to the proposed Related Party 
Transaction and request any additional information that it deems necessary to complete such 
review.  

The Municipal Law prohibits transactions between Charter Schools and for-profit business 
entities in which a member of the Board of Trustees or a Key Employee has an interest if such 
Trustee or Key Employee has certain enumerated responsibilities. Accordingly, the Audit 
Committee will first determine whether or not the Trustee, Officer or Key Employee who has an 
interest in any proposed contract with a for-profit entity, has the power or duty, individually or 
as a member of the Board, to (1) negotiate, prepare, authorize or approve the contract or 
authorize payment thereunder; (2) audit bills or claims under the contract; or (3) appoint an 
officer or employee who has any of these powers or duties. If the interested Trustee, Officer or 
Key Employee does not have any of the enumerated responsibilities or if the proposed contract 
is with a not-for-profit entity, or is otherwise authorized by § 802 of the Municipal Law, the 
Committee may continue its review. 

4 



 
 

 
    

    
  

 
   

     

    
    

 

          
  

           
    

    
    

   

      
   

    
     

    
 

     
  

    
   

 

   
        

    

  

    
      

    

If a Related Party Transaction is otherwise authorized a 
financial interest or other material interest in such transaction, as assessed by the Audit 
Committee, the Audit Committee shall consider alternative transactions to the proposed 
transaction and the Chairperson of the Committee shall, if appropriate, appoint a disinterested 
person or committee to investigate alternatives. The Committee, after reviewing any such 
alternatives, shall determine whether the Corporation can obtain, with reasonable efforts, a 
more advantageous transaction or arrangement from a person or entity that would not give 
rise to a conflict of interest.  

The Audit Committee shall after considering alternative transactions and/or comparability data, 
determine whether the transaction or arrangement is fair, reasonable, and in the best interest 
of the Corporation at the time of its decision. 

Following its review the Audit Committee may approve the transaction, or may refer the matter 
to the Board of Trustees for approval by the Board.  

Upon receiving a recommendation from the Audit Committee, the Board may accept the 
recommendation or make an independent determination as to whether the proposed 
transaction is fair, reasonable and in the best interests of the Corporation. Upon the affirmative 
vote of not less than a majority of independent Trustees present, the Trustees may authorize 
the transaction. 

At the time of any deliberation or decision by the Audit Committee or the Board concerning the 
authorization of a proposed Related Party Transaction, the interested Trustee, Officer or Key 
Employee shall not be present and shall not attempt to improperly influence any deliberations 
or voting, provided that the Board, or Audit Committee, may request such individual to provide 
information regarding the Related Party Transaction prior to the commencement of 
deliberations or voting. 

The minutes of the meeting of the Board and the Audit Committee that conducted the initial 
review shall provide contemporaneous documentation of the basis for approval, including the 

of the persons who were present for discussions and votes relating to the transaction or 
arrangement, the content of the discussion, and a record of any votes taken in connection with 
the proceedings. 

The Corporation shall not enter into a Related Party Transaction unless it is approved in 
accordance with this Policy. Any Related Party Transaction that is approved without 
complying with the procedure set forth in this section shall be void. 

Periodic Reviews 

To ensure that the KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools operate in a manner consistent with 
charitable purposes and do not engage in activities that could jeopardize tax-exempt status, 
periodic reviews shall be conducted by the Audit Committee of each Corporation. The Audit 
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Committee shall report to the Board of Trustees. The periodic reviews shall, at a minimum, 
include the following subjects: 

a. Whether compensation arrangements and benefits are fair and reasonable, based 
on competent survey information, and in the best interests of the Corporation. 

b. Whether any related party transactions or arrangements with or on behalf of the 
Corporation are properly recorded, reflect reasonable investment or payments for 
goods and services, further charitable purposes and do not result in inurement, 
impermissible private benefit or in an excess benefit transaction. 

Violations of the Conflicts of Interest Policy: 

If the Board has reasonable cause to believe that a Trustee, Officer or Key Employee has failed 
to disclose an actual or possible Conflict of Interest, it shall inform the individual of the basis for 
such belief and afford that person an opportunity to explain the alleged failure to disclose. If, 
after hearing the response and after making further investigation as warranted by the 
circumstances, the Board determines that the Trustee, Officer or Key Employee has failed to 
disclose an actual or possible Conflict of Interest, it shall take appropriate disciplinary and 
corrective action. 
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Conflicts of Interest Policy 

KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools & KIPP Academy Charter School 

Purpose: 

KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools has 
adopted a Code of Ethics setting forth for the guidance of trustees, officers and employees the 
standards of conduct expected of them, including standards with respect to disclosure of 
conflicts of interest regarding any matter brought or required to be brought before their 
respective Boards. The Conflict of Interest Policy is part of the Codes of Ethics adopted by each 
of the Corporations. It provides procedures for addressing, disclosing, and documenting 
conflicts of interest as such term in used in §§ 800 through 806 of the New York State General 

-a of the Not-for-Profit Corporation 
Law. It also includes procedures for addressing Related Party Transactions, as such term is 
defined in § 102 (24) of the Not-for-Profit Corporation Law. The Policy supplements, and does 
not replace any applicable provisions of the General Municipal Law and other state and federal 
laws governing conflicts of interest. It applies to all Trustees, Officers and Key Employees of 

Definitions: 

Affiliate 
Corporation. 

Audit Committee ns the Audit Committee of the Corporation, as described in the By-laws 
of the Corporation. The Audit Committee is comprised of at least three Trustees who are 
Independent Directors as defined in § 102 (21) of the Not-for-Profit Corporation Law and in this 
Policy. 

Board 

Compensation 
that is valued at $75 or more is expressly prohibited by the Municipal Law when offered to a 
Trustee, Officer or Key Employee in connection with official duties, but gifts of lesser value may 
also be subject to this policy. 

 refers to each of the KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools which have adopted this 
policy and which are Education Corporations and, as such, subject to provisions of the Not-for-
Profit Corporation Law made applicable to education corporations by § 216-a of the Education 
Law.  Each Corporation, as a chartered entity, is also subject to the Conflict of Interest 
Provisions of §§ 800 through 806 of the General Municipal Law, 
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Financial Interest 
receive an economic benefit, directly or indirectly, from such transaction or compensation 
agreement. 

Independent Director Trustee who (i) is not, and has not been within the last three 
years, an employee of the Corporation or an Affiliate and does not have a Relative who is, or 
has been within the last three years, a Key Employee of the Corporation  or of an Affiliate; (ii) 
has not received, and does not have a Relative who has received, in any of the last three fiscal 
years, more than $10,000 in direct compensation from the Corporation or from an Affiliate 
(other than reimbursement for expenses reasonably incurred as a Trustee, Officer or Key 
Employee); and (iii) is not a current employee of, or does not have a substantial financial 
interest in, and does not have a Relative who is a current officer of or who has a substantial 
financial interest in, any entity that has made payments to, or received payments from the 
Corporation or from an Affiliate for property or services in an amount which, in any of the last 

revenues. For these purpos 

Key Employee 
substantial influence over the Corporation, as defined from time to time by the Corporation, or 
who has or shares authority to control or determine a substantial portion of the operating 
budgets of the Corporation or the schools or compensation for employees. 

Related Party 
Affiliate; (2) A Relative of any Trustee, Officer, or Key Employee of the Corporation or an 
Affiliate or (3) any entity in which any individual described in clause (1) or (2) of this definition 
has a 35% or greater ownership or beneficial interest, except that in the case of a partnership 
or professional corporation, a Related Party will include an entity in which any individual 
described in clause (1) or (2) above has a direct or indirect ownership interest in excess of 5%. 

Related Party Transaction ion or agreement or other kind of arrangement 
between the Corporation and a Related Party or an entity in which the Related Party has an 
interest. Related Party Transactions are subject to special provisions for disclosure, evaluation 
and documentation. In addition, certain Related Party Transactions are subject to limitations 
described in the Municipal Law. These special provisions and limitations are summarized in this 
Policy. 

Relative ic Health Law 
§2994-a, ancestors, siblings (whether whole or half-blood), children (whether natural or 
adopted), grandchildren, great grandchildren and spouses or domestic partners of ancestors, 
siblings, children, grandchildren, and great-grandchildren. Children of siblings and their spouses 
and partners will also be considered Relatives under this Policy. 

School 
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Corporation as described in the By-laws.  

What is a Conflict of Interest? 

financial interests of a Trustee, Officer or Key Employee diverge or may potentially diverge from 
the interests of the Corporation.  A conflict of interest will arise when a transaction involving 
the Corporation could financially harm or benefit a person covered by this Policy, but a conflict 
of interest does not always involve financial interests.  A conflict may also involve the use of the 
services or facilities of the Corporation or may involve the use of staff assistance for purposes 
other than carrying out professional or fiduciary duties. 

Conflicts may also arise if a Trustee, Officer or Key Employee is asked to communicate on behalf 
of a person or firm with the Corporation. Accordingly, a Trustee, Officer or Key Employee may 
not communicate with the Board or a School on behalf of a person or a firm, unless requested 
to do so by the Corporation, and shall avoid engaging in activities that would appear to be 
unduly influenced by other persons who have a special interest in matters under consideration 
by the Trustee of the Corporation or employees of one of the Schools.  If a Trustee, Officer or 
Key Employee inadvertently engages in such activities, he/she shall promptly notify the Board in 
writing of such activities and shall disclose all known facts prior to participating in a Board 
discussion of these matters. 

Disclosure of Conflicts of Interest: 

Written disclosure of all potential Conflicts of Interest is required of Trustees, Officers and Key 
Employees prior to election or appointment and annually thereafter.  However, Conflicts of 
Interest may arise between annual updates and, accordingly, an individual with a duality of 
interest shall disclose the potential Conflict (a) prior to voting on or otherwise discharging his or 
her duties with respect to any matter involving the potential Conflict; (b) prior to entering into 
any contract or transaction involving the Corporation; and (c) as soon as possible after he or she 
learns of an actual or potential Conflict of Interest. Disclosure of the material facts surrounding 
the Conflict of Interest shall be made to the Chairperson of the Board and the Chairperson of 
the Audit Committee. The interested Trustee or Officer shall thereafter refrain from 
participating in deliberations and decisions relating to the matter unless he or she is asked for 
information by the Chairperson of the Board or the Audit Committee. 

The existence and resolution (as applicable) of any reported Conflict of Interest shall be 
documented in the appropriate records of the Corporation, including in the minutes of any 
meeting at which the Conflict of Interest was discussed and voted upon. 

A Key Employee who wishes to use staff assistance, services or facilities for purposes other than 
carrying out professional responsibilities will disclose the Conflict to the Principal of the School 
who will exercise discretion in allowing or disallowing the proposed use in accordance with this 
Policy. 
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Annual Statements: 

Without limiting the general and continuing disclosure obligation set forth in the preceding 
section, the Chairperson of the Audit Committee shall distribute annually to all Trustees, 
Officers and Key Employees, a form soliciting the disclosure of all potential Conflicts of 
Interests, including specific information concerning the terms of any contract or transaction 
with the Corporation and whether the applicable processes set forth in this Policy were used. 
Each Trustee, Officer and Key Employee shall also annually sign a statement included with the 
form distributed by the Corporation which affirms such person: 

a. has received a copy of this Policy; 

b. has read and understands this Policy, and 

c. has agreed to comply with this Policy. 

Written disclosures shall be submitted to and reviewed by the Chairperson of the Board and the 
Chairperson of the Audit Committee. 

Related Party Transactions: 

A Related Party Transaction is a transaction in which the Corporation is a party and a Related 
Party (as defined above) has a financial interest or another material interest. All rules and 
principles related to disclosure of Conflicts of Interest apply to Related Party Transactions, but 
in addition, the Trustees must initiate a formal Audit Committee review or a review by a 
quorum of the Board consisting of Independent Trustees. 

Any Trustee, Officer or Key Employee with an interest in a Related Party Transaction shall make 
a good faith disclosure of all material facts related to such interest to the Audit Committee.  The 
Audit Committee shall review all the material facts related to the proposed Related Party 
Transaction and request any additional information that it deems necessary to complete such 
review.  

The Municipal Law prohibits transactions between Charter Schools and for-profit business 
entities in which a member of the Board of Trustees or a Key Employee has an interest if such 
Trustee or Key Employee has certain enumerated responsibilities. Accordingly, the Audit 
Committee will first determine whether or not the Trustee, Officer or Key Employee who has an 
interest in any proposed contract with a for-profit entity, has the power or duty, individually or 
as a member of the Board, to (1) negotiate, prepare, authorize or approve the contract or 
authorize payment thereunder; (2) audit bills or claims under the contract; or (3) appoint an 
officer or employee who has any of these powers or duties. If the interested Trustee, Officer or 
Key Employee does not have any of the enumerated responsibilities or if the proposed contract 
is with a not-for-profit entity, or is otherwise authorized by § 802 of the Municipal Law, the 
Committee may continue its review. 
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If a Related Party Transaction is otherwise authorized a 
financial interest or other material interest in such transaction, as assessed by the Audit 
Committee, the Audit Committee shall consider alternative transactions to the proposed 
transaction and the Chairperson of the Committee shall, if appropriate, appoint a disinterested 
person or committee to investigate alternatives. The Committee, after reviewing any such 
alternatives, shall determine whether the Corporation can obtain, with reasonable efforts, a 
more advantageous transaction or arrangement from a person or entity that would not give 
rise to a conflict of interest.  

The Audit Committee shall after considering alternative transactions and/or comparability data, 
determine whether the transaction or arrangement is fair, reasonable, and in the best interest 
of the Corporation at the time of its decision. 

Following its review the Audit Committee may approve the transaction, or may refer the matter 
to the Board of Trustees for approval by the Board.  

Upon receiving a recommendation from the Audit Committee, the Board may accept the 
recommendation or make an independent determination as to whether the proposed 
transaction is fair, reasonable and in the best interests of the Corporation. Upon the affirmative 
vote of not less than a majority of independent Trustees present, the Trustees may authorize 
the transaction. 

At the time of any deliberation or decision by the Audit Committee or the Board concerning the 
authorization of a proposed Related Party Transaction, the interested Trustee, Officer or Key 
Employee shall not be present and shall not attempt to improperly influence any deliberations 
or voting, provided that the Board, or Audit Committee, may request such individual to provide 
information regarding the Related Party Transaction prior to the commencement of 
deliberations or voting. 

The minutes of the meeting of the Board and the Audit Committee that conducted the initial 
review shall provide contemporaneous documentation of the basis for approval, including the 

of the persons who were present for discussions and votes relating to the transaction or 
arrangement, the content of the discussion, and a record of any votes taken in connection with 
the proceedings. 

The Corporation shall not enter into a Related Party Transaction unless it is approved in 
accordance with this Policy. Any Related Party Transaction that is approved without 
complying with the procedure set forth in this section shall be void. 

Periodic Reviews 

To ensure that the KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools operate in a manner consistent with 
charitable purposes and do not engage in activities that could jeopardize tax-exempt status, 
periodic reviews shall be conducted by the Audit Committee of each Corporation. The Audit 
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Committee shall report to the Board of Trustees. The periodic reviews shall, at a minimum, 
include the following subjects: 

a. Whether compensation arrangements and benefits are fair and reasonable, based 
on competent survey information, and in the best interests of the Corporation. 

b. Whether any related party transactions or arrangements with or on behalf of the 
Corporation are properly recorded, reflect reasonable investment or payments for 
goods and services, further charitable purposes and do not result in inurement, 
impermissible private benefit or in an excess benefit transaction. 

Violations of the Conflicts of Interest Policy: 

If the Board has reasonable cause to believe that a Trustee, Officer or Key Employee has failed 
to disclose an actual or possible Conflict of Interest, it shall inform the individual of the basis for 
such belief and afford that person an opportunity to explain the alleged failure to disclose. If, 
after hearing the response and after making further investigation as warranted by the 
circumstances, the Board determines that the Trustee, Officer or Key Employee has failed to 
disclose an actual or possible Conflict of Interest, it shall take appropriate disciplinary and 
corrective action. 
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________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________ 

Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Board of 
Trustees Member 

Name: 

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (the Charter School Name, 
if the charter school is the only school operated by the education 
corporation): 

1. List all positions held on the education corporation Board of Trustees 
( Board ) (e.g. president, treasurer, parent representative). 

2. Are you an employee of any school operated by the education corporation? 
____Yes ____No 

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you 
hold, your responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 

3. Are you related, by blood or marriage, to any person employed by the school? 

If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and how this person 
could benefit from your participation. 

4. Are you related, by blood, marriage, or legal adoption/guardianship, to any 
student currently enrolled in the school? 

If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and how this person 
could benefit from your participation. 

5. Are you related, by blood or marriage, to any person that could otherwise 
benefit from your participation as a board member of this school? 



         
    

 
 
 

      
    

      
      

         
       

      
          

        

  
 

         
        

 
 

  

      
       
          

     
        

         
        

   

 

 

 

  
  

 
  
  

 

 
 

  
  
  

 

    
 
 
 

 

 

 

       

If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and how this person 
could benefit from your participation. 

6. Are you a past, current, or prospective employee of the charter school, 
education corporation, and/or an entity that provides comprehensive 
management services ( CMO ), whether for-profit or not-for-profit, which 
contracts, or may contract, with the charter school or education corporation; 
or do you serve as an employee, officer, or director of, or own a controlling 
interest in, a business or entity that contracts, or does business with, or plans 
to contract or do business with, the charter school, education corporation, 
and/or a CMO, whether for-profit or not-for-profit, including, but not limited to, 
the lease of real or personal property to the said entities? 

____Yes ____No 

If Yes, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your 
responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 

7. Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that 
you or any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with 
you in your house have held or engaged in with the charter school(s) 
operated by the education corporation during the time you have served on the 
Board, and in the six-month period prior to such service. If there has been no 
such interest or transaction, write None. Please note that if you answered 
Yes to Questions 2-3 above, you need not disclose again your employment 
status, salary, etc. 

Date(s) Nature of 
financial 

interest/transacti 
on 

Steps taken to 
avoid a conflict 

of interest, 
(e.g., did not 
vote, did not 
participate in 
discussion) 

Name of person 
holding interest or 

engaging in 
transaction and 
relationship to 

you 

. D o n o t l e a v e t h i s s p a c e b l a n k . 



       
     
       

   
         

  
        

   
      

         
     

     

      
     

   

 

  
 

 

 

   
   

  
 

  
  

 
 

        P l e a s e w

8. Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm, 
partnership, franchise holding company, joint-stock company, business or real 
estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people 
doing business with the school(s) operated by the education corporation and 
in which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or 
your immediate family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a 
financial interest or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or 
employee of an organization formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are 
doing business with the school(s) through a management or services 
agreement, please identify only the name of the organization, your position in 
the organization, and the relationship between such organization and the 
school(s). If there was no financial interest, write None. 

Organization 
conducting 

business with 
the school(s) 

Nature of 
business 

conducted 

Approximat Name of Trustee 
e value of and/or immediate 

the family member of 
Steps 

business household holding an 
taken to 

conducted interest in the 
avoid 

organization 
conflict of 

conducting business 
interest 

with the school(s) and 
the nature of the 

interest 

. D o n o t l e a v e t h i s s p a c e b l a n k . 

_______________________________ 
Signature Date 

Please note that this document is considered a public record and, as such, may 
be made available to members of the public upon request under the Freedom of 
Information Law. Personal contact information provided below will be redacted. 





 
 

  

    

 

   
     

   
      

      
    

     
  

  
    

   
  

 

 

     
      

  

 

     
    

  

 
   
     

      
 

Conflicts of Interest Policy 

KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools & KIPP Academy Charter School 

Purpose: 

KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools has 
adopted a Code of Ethics setting forth for the guidance of trustees, officers and employees the 
standards of conduct expected of them, including standards with respect to disclosure of 
conflicts of interest regarding any matter brought or required to be brought before their 
respective Boards. The Conflict of Interest Policy is part of the Codes of Ethics adopted by each 
of the Corporations. It provides procedures for addressing, disclosing, and documenting 
conflicts of interest as such term in used in §§ 800 through 806 of the New York State General 

-a of the Not-for-Profit Corporation 
Law. It also includes procedures for addressing Related Party Transactions, as such term is 
defined in § 102 (24) of the Not-for-Profit Corporation Law. The Policy supplements, and does 
not replace any applicable provisions of the General Municipal Law and other state and federal 
laws governing conflicts of interest. It applies to all Trustees, Officers and Key Employees of 

Definitions: 

Affiliate 
Corporation. 

Audit Committee ns the Audit Committee of the Corporation, as described in the By-laws 
of the Corporation. The Audit Committee is comprised of at least three Trustees who are 
Independent Directors as defined in § 102 (21) of the Not-for-Profit Corporation Law and in this 
Policy. 

Board 

Compensation 
that is valued at $75 or more is expressly prohibited by the Municipal Law when offered to a 
Trustee, Officer or Key Employee in connection with official duties, but gifts of lesser value may 
also be subject to this policy. 

 refers to each of the KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools which have adopted this 
policy and which are Education Corporations and, as such, subject to provisions of the Not-for-
Profit Corporation Law made applicable to education corporations by § 216-a of the Education 
Law.  Each Corporation, as a chartered entity, is also subject to the Conflict of Interest 
Provisions of §§ 800 through 806 of the General Municipal Law, 
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Financial Interest 
receive an economic benefit, directly or indirectly, from such transaction or compensation 
agreement. 

Independent Director Trustee who (i) is not, and has not been within the last three 
years, an employee of the Corporation or an Affiliate and does not have a Relative who is, or 
has been within the last three years, a Key Employee of the Corporation  or of an Affiliate; (ii) 
has not received, and does not have a Relative who has received, in any of the last three fiscal 
years, more than $10,000 in direct compensation from the Corporation or from an Affiliate 
(other than reimbursement for expenses reasonably incurred as a Trustee, Officer or Key 
Employee); and (iii) is not a current employee of, or does not have a substantial financial 
interest in, and does not have a Relative who is a current officer of or who has a substantial 
financial interest in, any entity that has made payments to, or received payments from the 
Corporation or from an Affiliate for property or services in an amount which, in any of the last 

revenues. For these purpos 

Key Employee 
substantial influence over the Corporation, as defined from time to time by the Corporation, or 
who has or shares authority to control or determine a substantial portion of the operating 
budgets of the Corporation or the schools or compensation for employees. 

Related Party 
Affiliate; (2) A Relative of any Trustee, Officer, or Key Employee of the Corporation or an 
Affiliate or (3) any entity in which any individual described in clause (1) or (2) of this definition 
has a 35% or greater ownership or beneficial interest, except that in the case of a partnership 
or professional corporation, a Related Party will include an entity in which any individual 
described in clause (1) or (2) above has a direct or indirect ownership interest in excess of 5%. 

Related Party Transaction ion or agreement or other kind of arrangement 
between the Corporation and a Related Party or an entity in which the Related Party has an 
interest. Related Party Transactions are subject to special provisions for disclosure, evaluation 
and documentation. In addition, certain Related Party Transactions are subject to limitations 
described in the Municipal Law. These special provisions and limitations are summarized in this 
Policy. 

Relative ic Health Law 
§2994-a, ancestors, siblings (whether whole or half-blood), children (whether natural or 
adopted), grandchildren, great grandchildren and spouses or domestic partners of ancestors, 
siblings, children, grandchildren, and great-grandchildren. Children of siblings and their spouses 
and partners will also be considered Relatives under this Policy. 

School 
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Corporation as described in the By-laws.  

What is a Conflict of Interest? 

financial interests of a Trustee, Officer or Key Employee diverge or may potentially diverge from 
the interests of the Corporation.  A conflict of interest will arise when a transaction involving 
the Corporation could financially harm or benefit a person covered by this Policy, but a conflict 
of interest does not always involve financial interests.  A conflict may also involve the use of the 
services or facilities of the Corporation or may involve the use of staff assistance for purposes 
other than carrying out professional or fiduciary duties. 

Conflicts may also arise if a Trustee, Officer or Key Employee is asked to communicate on behalf 
of a person or firm with the Corporation. Accordingly, a Trustee, Officer or Key Employee may 
not communicate with the Board or a School on behalf of a person or a firm, unless requested 
to do so by the Corporation, and shall avoid engaging in activities that would appear to be 
unduly influenced by other persons who have a special interest in matters under consideration 
by the Trustee of the Corporation or employees of one of the Schools.  If a Trustee, Officer or 
Key Employee inadvertently engages in such activities, he/she shall promptly notify the Board in 
writing of such activities and shall disclose all known facts prior to participating in a Board 
discussion of these matters. 

Disclosure of Conflicts of Interest: 

Written disclosure of all potential Conflicts of Interest is required of Trustees, Officers and Key 
Employees prior to election or appointment and annually thereafter.  However, Conflicts of 
Interest may arise between annual updates and, accordingly, an individual with a duality of 
interest shall disclose the potential Conflict (a) prior to voting on or otherwise discharging his or 
her duties with respect to any matter involving the potential Conflict; (b) prior to entering into 
any contract or transaction involving the Corporation; and (c) as soon as possible after he or she 
learns of an actual or potential Conflict of Interest. Disclosure of the material facts surrounding 
the Conflict of Interest shall be made to the Chairperson of the Board and the Chairperson of 
the Audit Committee. The interested Trustee or Officer shall thereafter refrain from 
participating in deliberations and decisions relating to the matter unless he or she is asked for 
information by the Chairperson of the Board or the Audit Committee. 

The existence and resolution (as applicable) of any reported Conflict of Interest shall be 
documented in the appropriate records of the Corporation, including in the minutes of any 
meeting at which the Conflict of Interest was discussed and voted upon. 

A Key Employee who wishes to use staff assistance, services or facilities for purposes other than 
carrying out professional responsibilities will disclose the Conflict to the Principal of the School 
who will exercise discretion in allowing or disallowing the proposed use in accordance with this 
Policy. 
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Annual Statements: 

Without limiting the general and continuing disclosure obligation set forth in the preceding 
section, the Chairperson of the Audit Committee shall distribute annually to all Trustees, 
Officers and Key Employees, a form soliciting the disclosure of all potential Conflicts of 
Interests, including specific information concerning the terms of any contract or transaction 
with the Corporation and whether the applicable processes set forth in this Policy were used. 
Each Trustee, Officer and Key Employee shall also annually sign a statement included with the 
form distributed by the Corporation which affirms such person: 

a. has received a copy of this Policy; 

b. has read and understands this Policy, and 

c. has agreed to comply with this Policy. 

Written disclosures shall be submitted to and reviewed by the Chairperson of the Board and the 
Chairperson of the Audit Committee. 

Related Party Transactions: 

A Related Party Transaction is a transaction in which the Corporation is a party and a Related 
Party (as defined above) has a financial interest or another material interest. All rules and 
principles related to disclosure of Conflicts of Interest apply to Related Party Transactions, but 
in addition, the Trustees must initiate a formal Audit Committee review or a review by a 
quorum of the Board consisting of Independent Trustees. 

Any Trustee, Officer or Key Employee with an interest in a Related Party Transaction shall make 
a good faith disclosure of all material facts related to such interest to the Audit Committee.  The 
Audit Committee shall review all the material facts related to the proposed Related Party 
Transaction and request any additional information that it deems necessary to complete such 
review.  

The Municipal Law prohibits transactions between Charter Schools and for-profit business 
entities in which a member of the Board of Trustees or a Key Employee has an interest if such 
Trustee or Key Employee has certain enumerated responsibilities. Accordingly, the Audit 
Committee will first determine whether or not the Trustee, Officer or Key Employee who has an 
interest in any proposed contract with a for-profit entity, has the power or duty, individually or 
as a member of the Board, to (1) negotiate, prepare, authorize or approve the contract or 
authorize payment thereunder; (2) audit bills or claims under the contract; or (3) appoint an 
officer or employee who has any of these powers or duties. If the interested Trustee, Officer or 
Key Employee does not have any of the enumerated responsibilities or if the proposed contract 
is with a not-for-profit entity, or is otherwise authorized by § 802 of the Municipal Law, the 
Committee may continue its review. 
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If a Related Party Transaction is otherwise authorized a 
financial interest or other material interest in such transaction, as assessed by the Audit 
Committee, the Audit Committee shall consider alternative transactions to the proposed 
transaction and the Chairperson of the Committee shall, if appropriate, appoint a disinterested 
person or committee to investigate alternatives. The Committee, after reviewing any such 
alternatives, shall determine whether the Corporation can obtain, with reasonable efforts, a 
more advantageous transaction or arrangement from a person or entity that would not give 
rise to a conflict of interest.  

The Audit Committee shall after considering alternative transactions and/or comparability data, 
determine whether the transaction or arrangement is fair, reasonable, and in the best interest 
of the Corporation at the time of its decision. 

Following its review the Audit Committee may approve the transaction, or may refer the matter 
to the Board of Trustees for approval by the Board.  

Upon receiving a recommendation from the Audit Committee, the Board may accept the 
recommendation or make an independent determination as to whether the proposed 
transaction is fair, reasonable and in the best interests of the Corporation. Upon the affirmative 
vote of not less than a majority of independent Trustees present, the Trustees may authorize 
the transaction. 

At the time of any deliberation or decision by the Audit Committee or the Board concerning the 
authorization of a proposed Related Party Transaction, the interested Trustee, Officer or Key 
Employee shall not be present and shall not attempt to improperly influence any deliberations 
or voting, provided that the Board, or Audit Committee, may request such individual to provide 
information regarding the Related Party Transaction prior to the commencement of 
deliberations or voting. 

The minutes of the meeting of the Board and the Audit Committee that conducted the initial 
review shall provide contemporaneous documentation of the basis for approval, including the 

of the persons who were present for discussions and votes relating to the transaction or 
arrangement, the content of the discussion, and a record of any votes taken in connection with 
the proceedings. 

The Corporation shall not enter into a Related Party Transaction unless it is approved in 
accordance with this Policy. Any Related Party Transaction that is approved without 
complying with the procedure set forth in this section shall be void. 

Periodic Reviews 

To ensure that the KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools operate in a manner consistent with 
charitable purposes and do not engage in activities that could jeopardize tax-exempt status, 
periodic reviews shall be conducted by the Audit Committee of each Corporation. The Audit 
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Committee shall report to the Board of Trustees. The periodic reviews shall, at a minimum, 
include the following subjects: 

a. Whether compensation arrangements and benefits are fair and reasonable, based 
on competent survey information, and in the best interests of the Corporation. 

b. Whether any related party transactions or arrangements with or on behalf of the 
Corporation are properly recorded, reflect reasonable investment or payments for 
goods and services, further charitable purposes and do not result in inurement, 
impermissible private benefit or in an excess benefit transaction. 

Violations of the Conflicts of Interest Policy: 

If the Board has reasonable cause to believe that a Trustee, Officer or Key Employee has failed 
to disclose an actual or possible Conflict of Interest, it shall inform the individual of the basis for 
such belief and afford that person an opportunity to explain the alleged failure to disclose. If, 
after hearing the response and after making further investigation as warranted by the 
circumstances, the Board determines that the Trustee, Officer or Key Employee has failed to 
disclose an actual or possible Conflict of Interest, it shall take appropriate disciplinary and 
corrective action. 

6 









 
 

  

    

 

   
     

   
      

      
    

     
  

  
    

   
  

 

 

     
      

  

 

     
    

  

 
   
     

      
 

Conflicts of Interest Policy 

KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools & KIPP Academy Charter School 

Purpose: 

KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools has 
adopted a Code of Ethics setting forth for the guidance of trustees, officers and employees the 
standards of conduct expected of them, including standards with respect to disclosure of 
conflicts of interest regarding any matter brought or required to be brought before their 
respective Boards. The Conflict of Interest Policy is part of the Codes of Ethics adopted by each 
of the Corporations. It provides procedures for addressing, disclosing, and documenting 
conflicts of interest as such term in used in §§ 800 through 806 of the New York State General 

-a of the Not-for-Profit Corporation 
Law. It also includes procedures for addressing Related Party Transactions, as such term is 
defined in § 102 (24) of the Not-for-Profit Corporation Law. The Policy supplements, and does 
not replace any applicable provisions of the General Municipal Law and other state and federal 
laws governing conflicts of interest. It applies to all Trustees, Officers and Key Employees of 

Definitions: 

Affiliate 
Corporation. 

Audit Committee ns the Audit Committee of the Corporation, as described in the By-laws 
of the Corporation. The Audit Committee is comprised of at least three Trustees who are 
Independent Directors as defined in § 102 (21) of the Not-for-Profit Corporation Law and in this 
Policy. 

Board 

Compensation 
that is valued at $75 or more is expressly prohibited by the Municipal Law when offered to a 
Trustee, Officer or Key Employee in connection with official duties, but gifts of lesser value may 
also be subject to this policy. 

 refers to each of the KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools which have adopted this 
policy and which are Education Corporations and, as such, subject to provisions of the Not-for-
Profit Corporation Law made applicable to education corporations by § 216-a of the Education 
Law.  Each Corporation, as a chartered entity, is also subject to the Conflict of Interest 
Provisions of §§ 800 through 806 of the General Municipal Law, 
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Financial Interest 
receive an economic benefit, directly or indirectly, from such transaction or compensation 
agreement. 

Independent Director Trustee who (i) is not, and has not been within the last three 
years, an employee of the Corporation or an Affiliate and does not have a Relative who is, or 
has been within the last three years, a Key Employee of the Corporation  or of an Affiliate; (ii) 
has not received, and does not have a Relative who has received, in any of the last three fiscal 
years, more than $10,000 in direct compensation from the Corporation or from an Affiliate 
(other than reimbursement for expenses reasonably incurred as a Trustee, Officer or Key 
Employee); and (iii) is not a current employee of, or does not have a substantial financial 
interest in, and does not have a Relative who is a current officer of or who has a substantial 
financial interest in, any entity that has made payments to, or received payments from the 
Corporation or from an Affiliate for property or services in an amount which, in any of the last 

revenues. For these purpos 

Key Employee 
substantial influence over the Corporation, as defined from time to time by the Corporation, or 
who has or shares authority to control or determine a substantial portion of the operating 
budgets of the Corporation or the schools or compensation for employees. 

Related Party 
Affiliate; (2) A Relative of any Trustee, Officer, or Key Employee of the Corporation or an 
Affiliate or (3) any entity in which any individual described in clause (1) or (2) of this definition 
has a 35% or greater ownership or beneficial interest, except that in the case of a partnership 
or professional corporation, a Related Party will include an entity in which any individual 
described in clause (1) or (2) above has a direct or indirect ownership interest in excess of 5%. 

Related Party Transaction ion or agreement or other kind of arrangement 
between the Corporation and a Related Party or an entity in which the Related Party has an 
interest. Related Party Transactions are subject to special provisions for disclosure, evaluation 
and documentation. In addition, certain Related Party Transactions are subject to limitations 
described in the Municipal Law. These special provisions and limitations are summarized in this 
Policy. 

Relative ic Health Law 
§2994-a, ancestors, siblings (whether whole or half-blood), children (whether natural or 
adopted), grandchildren, great grandchildren and spouses or domestic partners of ancestors, 
siblings, children, grandchildren, and great-grandchildren. Children of siblings and their spouses 
and partners will also be considered Relatives under this Policy. 

School 
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Corporation as described in the By-laws.  

What is a Conflict of Interest? 

financial interests of a Trustee, Officer or Key Employee diverge or may potentially diverge from 
the interests of the Corporation.  A conflict of interest will arise when a transaction involving 
the Corporation could financially harm or benefit a person covered by this Policy, but a conflict 
of interest does not always involve financial interests.  A conflict may also involve the use of the 
services or facilities of the Corporation or may involve the use of staff assistance for purposes 
other than carrying out professional or fiduciary duties. 

Conflicts may also arise if a Trustee, Officer or Key Employee is asked to communicate on behalf 
of a person or firm with the Corporation. Accordingly, a Trustee, Officer or Key Employee may 
not communicate with the Board or a School on behalf of a person or a firm, unless requested 
to do so by the Corporation, and shall avoid engaging in activities that would appear to be 
unduly influenced by other persons who have a special interest in matters under consideration 
by the Trustee of the Corporation or employees of one of the Schools.  If a Trustee, Officer or 
Key Employee inadvertently engages in such activities, he/she shall promptly notify the Board in 
writing of such activities and shall disclose all known facts prior to participating in a Board 
discussion of these matters. 

Disclosure of Conflicts of Interest: 

Written disclosure of all potential Conflicts of Interest is required of Trustees, Officers and Key 
Employees prior to election or appointment and annually thereafter.  However, Conflicts of 
Interest may arise between annual updates and, accordingly, an individual with a duality of 
interest shall disclose the potential Conflict (a) prior to voting on or otherwise discharging his or 
her duties with respect to any matter involving the potential Conflict; (b) prior to entering into 
any contract or transaction involving the Corporation; and (c) as soon as possible after he or she 
learns of an actual or potential Conflict of Interest. Disclosure of the material facts surrounding 
the Conflict of Interest shall be made to the Chairperson of the Board and the Chairperson of 
the Audit Committee. The interested Trustee or Officer shall thereafter refrain from 
participating in deliberations and decisions relating to the matter unless he or she is asked for 
information by the Chairperson of the Board or the Audit Committee. 

The existence and resolution (as applicable) of any reported Conflict of Interest shall be 
documented in the appropriate records of the Corporation, including in the minutes of any 
meeting at which the Conflict of Interest was discussed and voted upon. 

A Key Employee who wishes to use staff assistance, services or facilities for purposes other than 
carrying out professional responsibilities will disclose the Conflict to the Principal of the School 
who will exercise discretion in allowing or disallowing the proposed use in accordance with this 
Policy. 
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Annual Statements: 

Without limiting the general and continuing disclosure obligation set forth in the preceding 
section, the Chairperson of the Audit Committee shall distribute annually to all Trustees, 
Officers and Key Employees, a form soliciting the disclosure of all potential Conflicts of 
Interests, including specific information concerning the terms of any contract or transaction 
with the Corporation and whether the applicable processes set forth in this Policy were used. 
Each Trustee, Officer and Key Employee shall also annually sign a statement included with the 
form distributed by the Corporation which affirms such person: 

a. has received a copy of this Policy; 

b. has read and understands this Policy, and 

c. has agreed to comply with this Policy. 

Written disclosures shall be submitted to and reviewed by the Chairperson of the Board and the 
Chairperson of the Audit Committee. 

Related Party Transactions: 

A Related Party Transaction is a transaction in which the Corporation is a party and a Related 
Party (as defined above) has a financial interest or another material interest. All rules and 
principles related to disclosure of Conflicts of Interest apply to Related Party Transactions, but 
in addition, the Trustees must initiate a formal Audit Committee review or a review by a 
quorum of the Board consisting of Independent Trustees. 

Any Trustee, Officer or Key Employee with an interest in a Related Party Transaction shall make 
a good faith disclosure of all material facts related to such interest to the Audit Committee.  The 
Audit Committee shall review all the material facts related to the proposed Related Party 
Transaction and request any additional information that it deems necessary to complete such 
review.  

The Municipal Law prohibits transactions between Charter Schools and for-profit business 
entities in which a member of the Board of Trustees or a Key Employee has an interest if such 
Trustee or Key Employee has certain enumerated responsibilities. Accordingly, the Audit 
Committee will first determine whether or not the Trustee, Officer or Key Employee who has an 
interest in any proposed contract with a for-profit entity, has the power or duty, individually or 
as a member of the Board, to (1) negotiate, prepare, authorize or approve the contract or 
authorize payment thereunder; (2) audit bills or claims under the contract; or (3) appoint an 
officer or employee who has any of these powers or duties. If the interested Trustee, Officer or 
Key Employee does not have any of the enumerated responsibilities or if the proposed contract 
is with a not-for-profit entity, or is otherwise authorized by § 802 of the Municipal Law, the 
Committee may continue its review. 
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If a Related Party Transaction is otherwise authorized a 
financial interest or other material interest in such transaction, as assessed by the Audit 
Committee, the Audit Committee shall consider alternative transactions to the proposed 
transaction and the Chairperson of the Committee shall, if appropriate, appoint a disinterested 
person or committee to investigate alternatives. The Committee, after reviewing any such 
alternatives, shall determine whether the Corporation can obtain, with reasonable efforts, a 
more advantageous transaction or arrangement from a person or entity that would not give 
rise to a conflict of interest.  

The Audit Committee shall after considering alternative transactions and/or comparability data, 
determine whether the transaction or arrangement is fair, reasonable, and in the best interest 
of the Corporation at the time of its decision. 

Following its review the Audit Committee may approve the transaction, or may refer the matter 
to the Board of Trustees for approval by the Board.  

Upon receiving a recommendation from the Audit Committee, the Board may accept the 
recommendation or make an independent determination as to whether the proposed 
transaction is fair, reasonable and in the best interests of the Corporation. Upon the affirmative 
vote of not less than a majority of independent Trustees present, the Trustees may authorize 
the transaction. 

At the time of any deliberation or decision by the Audit Committee or the Board concerning the 
authorization of a proposed Related Party Transaction, the interested Trustee, Officer or Key 
Employee shall not be present and shall not attempt to improperly influence any deliberations 
or voting, provided that the Board, or Audit Committee, may request such individual to provide 
information regarding the Related Party Transaction prior to the commencement of 
deliberations or voting. 

The minutes of the meeting of the Board and the Audit Committee that conducted the initial 
review shall provide contemporaneous documentation of the basis for approval, including the 

of the persons who were present for discussions and votes relating to the transaction or 
arrangement, the content of the discussion, and a record of any votes taken in connection with 
the proceedings. 

The Corporation shall not enter into a Related Party Transaction unless it is approved in 
accordance with this Policy. Any Related Party Transaction that is approved without 
complying with the procedure set forth in this section shall be void. 

Periodic Reviews 

To ensure that the KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools operate in a manner consistent with 
charitable purposes and do not engage in activities that could jeopardize tax-exempt status, 
periodic reviews shall be conducted by the Audit Committee of each Corporation. The Audit 
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Committee shall report to the Board of Trustees. The periodic reviews shall, at a minimum, 
include the following subjects: 

a. Whether compensation arrangements and benefits are fair and reasonable, based 
on competent survey information, and in the best interests of the Corporation. 

b. Whether any related party transactions or arrangements with or on behalf of the 
Corporation are properly recorded, reflect reasonable investment or payments for 
goods and services, further charitable purposes and do not result in inurement, 
impermissible private benefit or in an excess benefit transaction. 

Violations of the Conflicts of Interest Policy: 

If the Board has reasonable cause to believe that a Trustee, Officer or Key Employee has failed 
to disclose an actual or possible Conflict of Interest, it shall inform the individual of the basis for 
such belief and afford that person an opportunity to explain the alleged failure to disclose. If, 
after hearing the response and after making further investigation as warranted by the 
circumstances, the Board determines that the Trustee, Officer or Key Employee has failed to 
disclose an actual or possible Conflict of Interest, it shall take appropriate disciplinary and 
corrective action. 
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Conflicts of Interest Policy 

KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools & KIPP Academy Charter School 

Purpose: 

KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools has 
adopted a Code of Ethics setting forth for the guidance of trustees, officers and employees the 
standards of conduct expected of them, including standards with respect to disclosure of 
conflicts of interest regarding any matter brought or required to be brought before their 
respective Boards. The Conflict of Interest Policy is part of the Codes of Ethics adopted by each 
of the Corporations. It provides procedures for addressing, disclosing, and documenting 
conflicts of interest as such term in used in §§ 800 through 806 of the New York State General 

-a of the Not-for-Profit Corporation 
Law. It also includes procedures for addressing Related Party Transactions, as such term is 
defined in § 102 (24) of the Not-for-Profit Corporation Law. The Policy supplements, and does 
not replace any applicable provisions of the General Municipal Law and other state and federal 
laws governing conflicts of interest. It applies to all Trustees, Officers and Key Employees of 

Definitions: 

Affiliate 
Corporation. 

Audit Committee ns the Audit Committee of the Corporation, as described in the By-laws 
of the Corporation. The Audit Committee is comprised of at least three Trustees who are 
Independent Directors as defined in § 102 (21) of the Not-for-Profit Corporation Law and in this 
Policy. 

Board 

Compensation 
that is valued at $75 or more is expressly prohibited by the Municipal Law when offered to a 
Trustee, Officer or Key Employee in connection with official duties, but gifts of lesser value may 
also be subject to this policy. 

 refers to each of the KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools which have adopted this 
policy and which are Education Corporations and, as such, subject to provisions of the Not-for-
Profit Corporation Law made applicable to education corporations by § 216-a of the Education 
Law.  Each Corporation, as a chartered entity, is also subject to the Conflict of Interest 
Provisions of §§ 800 through 806 of the General Municipal Law, 
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Financial Interest 
receive an economic benefit, directly or indirectly, from such transaction or compensation 
agreement. 

Independent Director Trustee who (i) is not, and has not been within the last three 
years, an employee of the Corporation or an Affiliate and does not have a Relative who is, or 
has been within the last three years, a Key Employee of the Corporation  or of an Affiliate; (ii) 
has not received, and does not have a Relative who has received, in any of the last three fiscal 
years, more than $10,000 in direct compensation from the Corporation or from an Affiliate 
(other than reimbursement for expenses reasonably incurred as a Trustee, Officer or Key 
Employee); and (iii) is not a current employee of, or does not have a substantial financial 
interest in, and does not have a Relative who is a current officer of or who has a substantial 
financial interest in, any entity that has made payments to, or received payments from the 
Corporation or from an Affiliate for property or services in an amount which, in any of the last 

revenues. For these purpos 

Key Employee 
substantial influence over the Corporation, as defined from time to time by the Corporation, or 
who has or shares authority to control or determine a substantial portion of the operating 
budgets of the Corporation or the schools or compensation for employees. 

Related Party 
Affiliate; (2) A Relative of any Trustee, Officer, or Key Employee of the Corporation or an 
Affiliate or (3) any entity in which any individual described in clause (1) or (2) of this definition 
has a 35% or greater ownership or beneficial interest, except that in the case of a partnership 
or professional corporation, a Related Party will include an entity in which any individual 
described in clause (1) or (2) above has a direct or indirect ownership interest in excess of 5%. 

Related Party Transaction ion or agreement or other kind of arrangement 
between the Corporation and a Related Party or an entity in which the Related Party has an 
interest. Related Party Transactions are subject to special provisions for disclosure, evaluation 
and documentation. In addition, certain Related Party Transactions are subject to limitations 
described in the Municipal Law. These special provisions and limitations are summarized in this 
Policy. 

Relative ic Health Law 
§2994-a, ancestors, siblings (whether whole or half-blood), children (whether natural or 
adopted), grandchildren, great grandchildren and spouses or domestic partners of ancestors, 
siblings, children, grandchildren, and great-grandchildren. Children of siblings and their spouses 
and partners will also be considered Relatives under this Policy. 

School 
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Corporation as described in the By-laws.  

What is a Conflict of Interest? 

financial interests of a Trustee, Officer or Key Employee diverge or may potentially diverge from 
the interests of the Corporation.  A conflict of interest will arise when a transaction involving 
the Corporation could financially harm or benefit a person covered by this Policy, but a conflict 
of interest does not always involve financial interests.  A conflict may also involve the use of the 
services or facilities of the Corporation or may involve the use of staff assistance for purposes 
other than carrying out professional or fiduciary duties. 

Conflicts may also arise if a Trustee, Officer or Key Employee is asked to communicate on behalf 
of a person or firm with the Corporation. Accordingly, a Trustee, Officer or Key Employee may 
not communicate with the Board or a School on behalf of a person or a firm, unless requested 
to do so by the Corporation, and shall avoid engaging in activities that would appear to be 
unduly influenced by other persons who have a special interest in matters under consideration 
by the Trustee of the Corporation or employees of one of the Schools.  If a Trustee, Officer or 
Key Employee inadvertently engages in such activities, he/she shall promptly notify the Board in 
writing of such activities and shall disclose all known facts prior to participating in a Board 
discussion of these matters. 

Disclosure of Conflicts of Interest: 

Written disclosure of all potential Conflicts of Interest is required of Trustees, Officers and Key 
Employees prior to election or appointment and annually thereafter.  However, Conflicts of 
Interest may arise between annual updates and, accordingly, an individual with a duality of 
interest shall disclose the potential Conflict (a) prior to voting on or otherwise discharging his or 
her duties with respect to any matter involving the potential Conflict; (b) prior to entering into 
any contract or transaction involving the Corporation; and (c) as soon as possible after he or she 
learns of an actual or potential Conflict of Interest. Disclosure of the material facts surrounding 
the Conflict of Interest shall be made to the Chairperson of the Board and the Chairperson of 
the Audit Committee. The interested Trustee or Officer shall thereafter refrain from 
participating in deliberations and decisions relating to the matter unless he or she is asked for 
information by the Chairperson of the Board or the Audit Committee. 

The existence and resolution (as applicable) of any reported Conflict of Interest shall be 
documented in the appropriate records of the Corporation, including in the minutes of any 
meeting at which the Conflict of Interest was discussed and voted upon. 

A Key Employee who wishes to use staff assistance, services or facilities for purposes other than 
carrying out professional responsibilities will disclose the Conflict to the Principal of the School 
who will exercise discretion in allowing or disallowing the proposed use in accordance with this 
Policy. 
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Annual Statements: 

Without limiting the general and continuing disclosure obligation set forth in the preceding 
section, the Chairperson of the Audit Committee shall distribute annually to all Trustees, 
Officers and Key Employees, a form soliciting the disclosure of all potential Conflicts of 
Interests, including specific information concerning the terms of any contract or transaction 
with the Corporation and whether the applicable processes set forth in this Policy were used. 
Each Trustee, Officer and Key Employee shall also annually sign a statement included with the 
form distributed by the Corporation which affirms such person: 

a. has received a copy of this Policy; 

b. has read and understands this Policy, and 

c. has agreed to comply with this Policy. 

Written disclosures shall be submitted to and reviewed by the Chairperson of the Board and the 
Chairperson of the Audit Committee. 

Related Party Transactions: 

A Related Party Transaction is a transaction in which the Corporation is a party and a Related 
Party (as defined above) has a financial interest or another material interest. All rules and 
principles related to disclosure of Conflicts of Interest apply to Related Party Transactions, but 
in addition, the Trustees must initiate a formal Audit Committee review or a review by a 
quorum of the Board consisting of Independent Trustees. 

Any Trustee, Officer or Key Employee with an interest in a Related Party Transaction shall make 
a good faith disclosure of all material facts related to such interest to the Audit Committee.  The 
Audit Committee shall review all the material facts related to the proposed Related Party 
Transaction and request any additional information that it deems necessary to complete such 
review.  

The Municipal Law prohibits transactions between Charter Schools and for-profit business 
entities in which a member of the Board of Trustees or a Key Employee has an interest if such 
Trustee or Key Employee has certain enumerated responsibilities. Accordingly, the Audit 
Committee will first determine whether or not the Trustee, Officer or Key Employee who has an 
interest in any proposed contract with a for-profit entity, has the power or duty, individually or 
as a member of the Board, to (1) negotiate, prepare, authorize or approve the contract or 
authorize payment thereunder; (2) audit bills or claims under the contract; or (3) appoint an 
officer or employee who has any of these powers or duties. If the interested Trustee, Officer or 
Key Employee does not have any of the enumerated responsibilities or if the proposed contract 
is with a not-for-profit entity, or is otherwise authorized by § 802 of the Municipal Law, the 
Committee may continue its review. 
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If a Related Party Transaction is otherwise authorized a 
financial interest or other material interest in such transaction, as assessed by the Audit 
Committee, the Audit Committee shall consider alternative transactions to the proposed 
transaction and the Chairperson of the Committee shall, if appropriate, appoint a disinterested 
person or committee to investigate alternatives. The Committee, after reviewing any such 
alternatives, shall determine whether the Corporation can obtain, with reasonable efforts, a 
more advantageous transaction or arrangement from a person or entity that would not give 
rise to a conflict of interest.  

The Audit Committee shall after considering alternative transactions and/or comparability data, 
determine whether the transaction or arrangement is fair, reasonable, and in the best interest 
of the Corporation at the time of its decision. 

Following its review the Audit Committee may approve the transaction, or may refer the matter 
to the Board of Trustees for approval by the Board.  

Upon receiving a recommendation from the Audit Committee, the Board may accept the 
recommendation or make an independent determination as to whether the proposed 
transaction is fair, reasonable and in the best interests of the Corporation. Upon the affirmative 
vote of not less than a majority of independent Trustees present, the Trustees may authorize 
the transaction. 

At the time of any deliberation or decision by the Audit Committee or the Board concerning the 
authorization of a proposed Related Party Transaction, the interested Trustee, Officer or Key 
Employee shall not be present and shall not attempt to improperly influence any deliberations 
or voting, provided that the Board, or Audit Committee, may request such individual to provide 
information regarding the Related Party Transaction prior to the commencement of 
deliberations or voting. 

The minutes of the meeting of the Board and the Audit Committee that conducted the initial 
review shall provide contemporaneous documentation of the basis for approval, including the 

of the persons who were present for discussions and votes relating to the transaction or 
arrangement, the content of the discussion, and a record of any votes taken in connection with 
the proceedings. 

The Corporation shall not enter into a Related Party Transaction unless it is approved in 
accordance with this Policy. Any Related Party Transaction that is approved without 
complying with the procedure set forth in this section shall be void. 

Periodic Reviews 

To ensure that the KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools operate in a manner consistent with 
charitable purposes and do not engage in activities that could jeopardize tax-exempt status, 
periodic reviews shall be conducted by the Audit Committee of each Corporation. The Audit 
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Committee shall report to the Board of Trustees. The periodic reviews shall, at a minimum, 
include the following subjects: 

a. Whether compensation arrangements and benefits are fair and reasonable, based 
on competent survey information, and in the best interests of the Corporation. 

b. Whether any related party transactions or arrangements with or on behalf of the 
Corporation are properly recorded, reflect reasonable investment or payments for 
goods and services, further charitable purposes and do not result in inurement, 
impermissible private benefit or in an excess benefit transaction. 

Violations of the Conflicts of Interest Policy: 

If the Board has reasonable cause to believe that a Trustee, Officer or Key Employee has failed 
to disclose an actual or possible Conflict of Interest, it shall inform the individual of the basis for 
such belief and afford that person an opportunity to explain the alleged failure to disclose. If, 
after hearing the response and after making further investigation as warranted by the 
circumstances, the Board determines that the Trustee, Officer or Key Employee has failed to 
disclose an actual or possible Conflict of Interest, it shall take appropriate disciplinary and 
corrective action. 
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________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________ 

Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Board of 
Trustees Member 

Name: 

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (the Charter School Name, 
if the charter school is the only school operated by the education 
corporation): 

1. List all positions held on the education corporation Board of Trustees 
( Board ) (e.g. president, treasurer, parent representative). 

2. Are you an employee of any school operated by the education corporation? 
____Yes ____No 

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you 
hold, your responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 

3. Are you related, by blood or marriage, to any person employed by the school? 

If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and how this person 
could benefit from your participation. 

4. Are you related, by blood, marriage, or legal adoption/guardianship, to any 
student currently enrolled in the school? 

If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and how this person 
could benefit from your participation. 

5. Are you related, by blood or marriage, to any person that could otherwise 
benefit from your participation as a board member of this school? 



         
    

 
 
 

      
    

      
      

         
       

      
          

        

  
 

         
        

 
 

  

      
       
          

     
        

         
        

   

 

 

 

  
  

 
  
  

 

 
 

  
  
  

 

    
 
 
 

 

 

 

       

If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and how this person 
could benefit from your participation. 

6. Are you a past, current, or prospective employee of the charter school, 
education corporation, and/or an entity that provides comprehensive 
management services ( CMO ), whether for-profit or not-for-profit, which 
contracts, or may contract, with the charter school or education corporation; 
or do you serve as an employee, officer, or director of, or own a controlling 
interest in, a business or entity that contracts, or does business with, or plans 
to contract or do business with, the charter school, education corporation, 
and/or a CMO, whether for-profit or not-for-profit, including, but not limited to, 
the lease of real or personal property to the said entities? 

____Yes ____No 

If Yes, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your 
responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 

7. Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that 
you or any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with 
you in your house have held or engaged in with the charter school(s) 
operated by the education corporation during the time you have served on the 
Board, and in the six-month period prior to such service. If there has been no 
such interest or transaction, write None. Please note that if you answered 
Yes to Questions 2-3 above, you need not disclose again your employment 
status, salary, etc. 

Date(s) Nature of 
financial 

interest/transacti 
on 

Steps taken to 
avoid a conflict 

of interest, 
(e.g., did not 
vote, did not 
participate in 
discussion) 

Name of person 
holding interest or 

engaging in 
transaction and 
relationship to 

you 

. D o n o t l e a v e t h i s s p a c e b l a n k . 



       
     
       

   
         

  
        

   
      

         
     

     

      
     

   

 

  
 

 

 

   
   

  
 

  
  

 
 

        e a s e w . D o n o t l e a v e t h

_______________________________ 

8. Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm, 
partnership, franchise holding company, joint-stock company, business or real 
estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people 
doing business with the school(s) operated by the education corporation and 
in which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or 
your immediate family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a 
financial interest or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or 
employee of an organization formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are 
doing business with the school(s) through a management or services 
agreement, please identify only the name of the organization, your position in 
the organization, and the relationship between such organization and the 
school(s). If there was no financial interest, write None. 

Organization 
conducting 

business with 
the school(s) 

Nature of 
business 

conducted 

Approximat 
e value of 

the 
business 

conducted 

Name of Trustee 
and/or immediate 
family member of 

Steps 
household holding an 

taken to 
interest in the 

avoid 
organization 

conflict of 
conducting business 

interest 
with the school(s) and 

the nature of the 
interest 

P l i s s p a c e b l a n k . 

Signature Date 

Please note that this document is considered a public record and, as such, may 
be made available to members of the public upon request under the Freedom of 
Information Law. Personal contact information provided below will be redacted. 





 
 

  

    

 

   
     

   
      

      
    

     
  

  
    

   
  

 

 

     
      

  

 

     
    

  

 
   
     

      
 

Conflicts of Interest Policy 

KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools & KIPP Academy Charter School 

Purpose: 

KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools has 
adopted a Code of Ethics setting forth for the guidance of trustees, officers and employees the 
standards of conduct expected of them, including standards with respect to disclosure of 
conflicts of interest regarding any matter brought or required to be brought before their 
respective Boards. The Conflict of Interest Policy is part of the Codes of Ethics adopted by each 
of the Corporations. It provides procedures for addressing, disclosing, and documenting 
conflicts of interest as such term in used in §§ 800 through 806 of the New York State General 

-a of the Not-for-Profit Corporation 
Law. It also includes procedures for addressing Related Party Transactions, as such term is 
defined in § 102 (24) of the Not-for-Profit Corporation Law. The Policy supplements, and does 
not replace any applicable provisions of the General Municipal Law and other state and federal 
laws governing conflicts of interest. It applies to all Trustees, Officers and Key Employees of 

Definitions: 

Affiliate 
Corporation. 

Audit Committee ns the Audit Committee of the Corporation, as described in the By-laws 
of the Corporation. The Audit Committee is comprised of at least three Trustees who are 
Independent Directors as defined in § 102 (21) of the Not-for-Profit Corporation Law and in this 
Policy. 

Board 

Compensation 
that is valued at $75 or more is expressly prohibited by the Municipal Law when offered to a 
Trustee, Officer or Key Employee in connection with official duties, but gifts of lesser value may 
also be subject to this policy. 

 refers to each of the KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools which have adopted this 
policy and which are Education Corporations and, as such, subject to provisions of the Not-for-
Profit Corporation Law made applicable to education corporations by § 216-a of the Education 
Law.  Each Corporation, as a chartered entity, is also subject to the Conflict of Interest 
Provisions of §§ 800 through 806 of the General Municipal Law, 
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Financial Interest 
receive an economic benefit, directly or indirectly, from such transaction or compensation 
agreement. 

Independent Director Trustee who (i) is not, and has not been within the last three 
years, an employee of the Corporation or an Affiliate and does not have a Relative who is, or 
has been within the last three years, a Key Employee of the Corporation  or of an Affiliate; (ii) 
has not received, and does not have a Relative who has received, in any of the last three fiscal 
years, more than $10,000 in direct compensation from the Corporation or from an Affiliate 
(other than reimbursement for expenses reasonably incurred as a Trustee, Officer or Key 
Employee); and (iii) is not a current employee of, or does not have a substantial financial 
interest in, and does not have a Relative who is a current officer of or who has a substantial 
financial interest in, any entity that has made payments to, or received payments from the 
Corporation or from an Affiliate for property or services in an amount which, in any of the last 

revenues. For these purpos 

Key Employee 
substantial influence over the Corporation, as defined from time to time by the Corporation, or 
who has or shares authority to control or determine a substantial portion of the operating 
budgets of the Corporation or the schools or compensation for employees. 

Related Party 
Affiliate; (2) A Relative of any Trustee, Officer, or Key Employee of the Corporation or an 
Affiliate or (3) any entity in which any individual described in clause (1) or (2) of this definition 
has a 35% or greater ownership or beneficial interest, except that in the case of a partnership 
or professional corporation, a Related Party will include an entity in which any individual 
described in clause (1) or (2) above has a direct or indirect ownership interest in excess of 5%. 

Related Party Transaction ion or agreement or other kind of arrangement 
between the Corporation and a Related Party or an entity in which the Related Party has an 
interest. Related Party Transactions are subject to special provisions for disclosure, evaluation 
and documentation. In addition, certain Related Party Transactions are subject to limitations 
described in the Municipal Law. These special provisions and limitations are summarized in this 
Policy. 

Relative ic Health Law 
§2994-a, ancestors, siblings (whether whole or half-blood), children (whether natural or 
adopted), grandchildren, great grandchildren and spouses or domestic partners of ancestors, 
siblings, children, grandchildren, and great-grandchildren. Children of siblings and their spouses 
and partners will also be considered Relatives under this Policy. 

School 
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Corporation as described in the By-laws.  

What is a Conflict of Interest? 

financial interests of a Trustee, Officer or Key Employee diverge or may potentially diverge from 
the interests of the Corporation.  A conflict of interest will arise when a transaction involving 
the Corporation could financially harm or benefit a person covered by this Policy, but a conflict 
of interest does not always involve financial interests.  A conflict may also involve the use of the 
services or facilities of the Corporation or may involve the use of staff assistance for purposes 
other than carrying out professional or fiduciary duties. 

Conflicts may also arise if a Trustee, Officer or Key Employee is asked to communicate on behalf 
of a person or firm with the Corporation. Accordingly, a Trustee, Officer or Key Employee may 
not communicate with the Board or a School on behalf of a person or a firm, unless requested 
to do so by the Corporation, and shall avoid engaging in activities that would appear to be 
unduly influenced by other persons who have a special interest in matters under consideration 
by the Trustee of the Corporation or employees of one of the Schools.  If a Trustee, Officer or 
Key Employee inadvertently engages in such activities, he/she shall promptly notify the Board in 
writing of such activities and shall disclose all known facts prior to participating in a Board 
discussion of these matters. 

Disclosure of Conflicts of Interest: 

Written disclosure of all potential Conflicts of Interest is required of Trustees, Officers and Key 
Employees prior to election or appointment and annually thereafter.  However, Conflicts of 
Interest may arise between annual updates and, accordingly, an individual with a duality of 
interest shall disclose the potential Conflict (a) prior to voting on or otherwise discharging his or 
her duties with respect to any matter involving the potential Conflict; (b) prior to entering into 
any contract or transaction involving the Corporation; and (c) as soon as possible after he or she 
learns of an actual or potential Conflict of Interest. Disclosure of the material facts surrounding 
the Conflict of Interest shall be made to the Chairperson of the Board and the Chairperson of 
the Audit Committee. The interested Trustee or Officer shall thereafter refrain from 
participating in deliberations and decisions relating to the matter unless he or she is asked for 
information by the Chairperson of the Board or the Audit Committee. 

The existence and resolution (as applicable) of any reported Conflict of Interest shall be 
documented in the appropriate records of the Corporation, including in the minutes of any 
meeting at which the Conflict of Interest was discussed and voted upon. 

A Key Employee who wishes to use staff assistance, services or facilities for purposes other than 
carrying out professional responsibilities will disclose the Conflict to the Principal of the School 
who will exercise discretion in allowing or disallowing the proposed use in accordance with this 
Policy. 
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Annual Statements: 

Without limiting the general and continuing disclosure obligation set forth in the preceding 
section, the Chairperson of the Audit Committee shall distribute annually to all Trustees, 
Officers and Key Employees, a form soliciting the disclosure of all potential Conflicts of 
Interests, including specific information concerning the terms of any contract or transaction 
with the Corporation and whether the applicable processes set forth in this Policy were used. 
Each Trustee, Officer and Key Employee shall also annually sign a statement included with the 
form distributed by the Corporation which affirms such person: 

a. has received a copy of this Policy; 

b. has read and understands this Policy, and 

c. has agreed to comply with this Policy. 

Written disclosures shall be submitted to and reviewed by the Chairperson of the Board and the 
Chairperson of the Audit Committee. 

Related Party Transactions: 

A Related Party Transaction is a transaction in which the Corporation is a party and a Related 
Party (as defined above) has a financial interest or another material interest. All rules and 
principles related to disclosure of Conflicts of Interest apply to Related Party Transactions, but 
in addition, the Trustees must initiate a formal Audit Committee review or a review by a 
quorum of the Board consisting of Independent Trustees. 

Any Trustee, Officer or Key Employee with an interest in a Related Party Transaction shall make 
a good faith disclosure of all material facts related to such interest to the Audit Committee.  The 
Audit Committee shall review all the material facts related to the proposed Related Party 
Transaction and request any additional information that it deems necessary to complete such 
review.  

The Municipal Law prohibits transactions between Charter Schools and for-profit business 
entities in which a member of the Board of Trustees or a Key Employee has an interest if such 
Trustee or Key Employee has certain enumerated responsibilities. Accordingly, the Audit 
Committee will first determine whether or not the Trustee, Officer or Key Employee who has an 
interest in any proposed contract with a for-profit entity, has the power or duty, individually or 
as a member of the Board, to (1) negotiate, prepare, authorize or approve the contract or 
authorize payment thereunder; (2) audit bills or claims under the contract; or (3) appoint an 
officer or employee who has any of these powers or duties. If the interested Trustee, Officer or 
Key Employee does not have any of the enumerated responsibilities or if the proposed contract 
is with a not-for-profit entity, or is otherwise authorized by § 802 of the Municipal Law, the 
Committee may continue its review. 
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If a Related Party Transaction is otherwise authorized a 
financial interest or other material interest in such transaction, as assessed by the Audit 
Committee, the Audit Committee shall consider alternative transactions to the proposed 
transaction and the Chairperson of the Committee shall, if appropriate, appoint a disinterested 
person or committee to investigate alternatives. The Committee, after reviewing any such 
alternatives, shall determine whether the Corporation can obtain, with reasonable efforts, a 
more advantageous transaction or arrangement from a person or entity that would not give 
rise to a conflict of interest.  

The Audit Committee shall after considering alternative transactions and/or comparability data, 
determine whether the transaction or arrangement is fair, reasonable, and in the best interest 
of the Corporation at the time of its decision. 

Following its review the Audit Committee may approve the transaction, or may refer the matter 
to the Board of Trustees for approval by the Board.  

Upon receiving a recommendation from the Audit Committee, the Board may accept the 
recommendation or make an independent determination as to whether the proposed 
transaction is fair, reasonable and in the best interests of the Corporation. Upon the affirmative 
vote of not less than a majority of independent Trustees present, the Trustees may authorize 
the transaction. 

At the time of any deliberation or decision by the Audit Committee or the Board concerning the 
authorization of a proposed Related Party Transaction, the interested Trustee, Officer or Key 
Employee shall not be present and shall not attempt to improperly influence any deliberations 
or voting, provided that the Board, or Audit Committee, may request such individual to provide 
information regarding the Related Party Transaction prior to the commencement of 
deliberations or voting. 

The minutes of the meeting of the Board and the Audit Committee that conducted the initial 
review shall provide contemporaneous documentation of the basis for approval, including the 

of the persons who were present for discussions and votes relating to the transaction or 
arrangement, the content of the discussion, and a record of any votes taken in connection with 
the proceedings. 

The Corporation shall not enter into a Related Party Transaction unless it is approved in 
accordance with this Policy. Any Related Party Transaction that is approved without 
complying with the procedure set forth in this section shall be void. 

Periodic Reviews 

To ensure that the KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools operate in a manner consistent with 
charitable purposes and do not engage in activities that could jeopardize tax-exempt status, 
periodic reviews shall be conducted by the Audit Committee of each Corporation. The Audit 
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Committee shall report to the Board of Trustees. The periodic reviews shall, at a minimum, 
include the following subjects: 

a. Whether compensation arrangements and benefits are fair and reasonable, based 
on competent survey information, and in the best interests of the Corporation. 

b. Whether any related party transactions or arrangements with or on behalf of the 
Corporation are properly recorded, reflect reasonable investment or payments for 
goods and services, further charitable purposes and do not result in inurement, 
impermissible private benefit or in an excess benefit transaction. 

Violations of the Conflicts of Interest Policy: 

If the Board has reasonable cause to believe that a Trustee, Officer or Key Employee has failed 
to disclose an actual or possible Conflict of Interest, it shall inform the individual of the basis for 
such belief and afford that person an opportunity to explain the alleged failure to disclose. If, 
after hearing the response and after making further investigation as warranted by the 
circumstances, the Board determines that the Trustee, Officer or Key Employee has failed to 
disclose an actual or possible Conflict of Interest, it shall take appropriate disciplinary and 
corrective action. 
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s 
Meeting of the Board of Trustees 

September 22, 2020 

September 22, 
2020 using the Zoom videoconferencing platform, in accordance with special provisions of New 
York Executive Orders 202.1, 202.14, 202.28, 202.38, 202.48, 202.55, and 202.60. In accordance 
with the Open Meetings Law and the previously referenced Executive Orders, advance notice of the 
meeting was posted on KIPPNYC.org, the meeting was recorded,and a verbatim written transcript 
of the meeting was produced. All attendees and guests of the meeting were present by 
videoconference or telephone. The following Trustees were in attendance: RafaelMayer, Richard 
Taft, Whitney Tilson, Joe Negron, and Gwendolyn Brunson.Secretaryof the Board, Aisha Christian, 
was also present. 

Also in attendance were Directors of KIPP New York, Inc. (Larry Robbins, Dave Levin, Fred Scott, 
Valerie Lancaster Beal, LisaBlau, and Abigail Klem) and Trustees of KIPP NYC Public Charter 
Schools (Rafael Mayer, Richard Taft, Gwendolyn Brunson, Erica Dewan, and Adaobi Kanu). The 
following KIPP NYC staff members were alsoin attendance: Jim Manly (Superintendent), Alicia 
Johnson (President), Aisha Christian, Jane Martinez Dowling, Candace Rogers, and Rebecca Sleath. 
There were four members of the public in attendance: Genesis Vallejo, Kange Kaneene,Christina 
Carroll, and PCS Properties Foundation,Inc. Board Member Jack Chorowsky. 

Mr. Mayer called the meeting to order and welcomed attendees. 

Mr. Mayer asked for public comments. 

Guest staff speaker Genesis Vallejo gave an update on what remote learningis like from a staff 
perspective. Mr. Manly then gave an overview and status update on remote learning at KIPPNYC. 

The Board voted: 
To approve the minutes of the June, July, and August 2020 Board meetings. 
To approve the 20-21 new hires (hired before Sept 1, 2020). 
To amend the year-
such that the plan year from July 1, 2020 to Dec 31, 2020 will be six months in length. 
Thereafter, each fiscal year for the plan will run from Jan 1-Dec 31 beginning in 2021. 

Adjournment 
The meeting was adjourned. 

http:KIPPNYC.org


 





     
   

 
      

          
        

             
             

            
           

           
     

 
            

             
           

              
          

            
            

 

         
 

      

     
 

   

             

         
  
 

   
 
 

Academy 
Meeting of the Board of Trustees 

November 10, 2020 

The KIPP Academy Charter School November 10, 
2020 using the Zoom videoconferencing platform, in accordance with special provisions of New 
York Executive Orders 202.1, 202.14, 202.28, 202.38, 202.48, 202.55, 202.60, 202.67, and 202.72. In 
accordance with the Open Meetings Law and the previously referenced Executive Orders, advance 
notice of the meeting was posted on KIPPNYC.org, the meeting was recorded, and a verbatim 
written transcriptof the meeting was produced. All attendees and guests of the meeting were 
present by videoconference or telephone.  The following Trustees were in attendance: Rafael 
Mayer, Richard Taft, Gwendolyn Brunson,and Whitney Tilson. Secretary of the Board Aisha 
Christian was also present. 

Also in attendance were Directors of KIPP New York, Inc. (Larry Robbins, Dave Levin, Valerie 
Lancaster-Beal,AbigailKlem, Lisa Blau, FredScott, Rik Willard) and Trustees of KIPP NYC Public 
Charter Schools (Rafael Mayer, Richard Taft, Adaobi Kanu, Erica Dewan, and Gwendolyn Brunson). 
The following KIPP NYC staff members were alsoin attendance: Jim Manly (Superintendent), Alicia 
Johnson (President), Aisha Christian, Jane Martinez Dowling, Brian Zied,Kerry Mullins, Diane Flynn, 
John Powell, Veneka Chag, and Rebecca Sleath. There were two members of the public in 
attendance: KangeKaneeneand PCS Properties Foundation, Inc. Board Member Jack Chorowsky. 

Mr. Mayer called the meeting to order and welcomed attendees. 

Mr. Mayer asked for public comments. 

answered questions from the Board. 

The Board voted: 

To approve the minutes of the September and October 2020 Board Meetings. 

To accept the 19-20 KIPP Academy Charter School audit. 

Adjournment 
The meeting was adjourned. 

http:KIPPNYC.org


     
  

 
       

            
        

             
             

            
          

           
     

 
            

           
          

          
 

         
 

      

          
             
       

  
 

    

               
       

        
          

 

              
  

 

   
 
 

Meeting of the Board of Trustees 
January 12, 2021 

The KIPP Academy School January 12, 2021 using 
the Zoom videoconferencing platform, in accordance with special provisions of New York Executive 
Orders 202.1, 202.14,202.28, 202.38, 202.48, 202.55,202.60, 202.67, 202.79, and 202.87.In 
accordance with the Open Meetings Law and the previously referenced Executive Orders, advance 
notice of the meeting was posted on KIPPNYC.org, the meeting was recorded, and a verbatim 
written transcriptof the meeting was produced. All attendees and guests of the meeting were 
present by videoconference or telephone.  The following Trustees were in attendance: Rafael 
Mayer, Richard Taft, Gwendolyn Brunson,Whitney Tilson, and Joe Negron. Secretary of the Board 
Aisha Christian was also present. 

Also in attendance were Trustees of KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools (Rafael Mayer, Richard Taft, 
Gwendolyn Brunson, Erica Dewan, and Adaobi Kanu). The following KIPP NYC staff members were 
also in attendance: Jim Manly (Superintendent), Alicia Johnson (President), Aisha Christian, Brian 
Zied, Jane Martinez Dowling, Lise Martina, Rebecca Sleath, Kerry Mullins, and Chrystal Griffin. 

Mr. Mayer called the meeting to order and welcomed attendees. 

Mr. Mayer asked for public comments. 

Mr. Manly gave an overview of the most recent remote learning feedback from parents. 
Ms. Griffin shared her experienceof providing remote learning at KIPP Star MiddleSchool and 
answered questions from Board members. 

ing. 

The Board voted to: 

Re-confirm Rafael Mayer, Richard Taft and Whitney Tilson as members of the Finance and 
Audit Committee, withRafael Mayer as CommitteeChair 
Approve Anissa Jones as Principal of Academy Elementary School 
Move into executive session following the public portion of the Board meeting 

The Board entered executive session pursuant to Section 105(d) of the New York State Open 
Meeting Law. 

Adjournment 
The meeting was adjourned. 

http:KIPPNYC.org
http:202.87.In
http:202.55,202.60
http:202.14,202.28


   
 

 
    

   
     

    
    

   
        

 
  

   
   

    
     

 
    

       
 

 

 

  
 

       
     

 

    
   
    
      

 
      

   
      

     
  

    
     

      
    

Academy 
Meeting of the Board of Trustees 

June 15, 2021 

The KIPP Academy Charter School June 15, 2021 
using the Zoom videoconferencing platform, in accordance with special provisions of New York 
Executive Order 202.1 and each successor Executive Order to 202, including Executive Order 
202.108. In accordance with the Open Meetings Law and the previously referenced Executive 
Orders, advance notice of the meeting was posted on KIPPNYC.org, the meeting was recorded, and a 
verbatim written transcript of the meeting was produced. All attendees and guests of the meeting 
were present by videoconference or telephone. The following Trustees were in attendance: Rafael 
Mayer, Richard Taft and Gwendolyn Brunson. 

Also in attendance were Trustees of KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools (Rafael Mayer, Richard Taft, 
Gwendolyn Brunson, Adoabi Kanu, and Erica Dewan) and Directors of KIPP New York, Inc. (Dave 
Levin, Angela Diaz, Larry Robbins, Randy Simpson, Elias Alcantara, Rik Willard, Fred Scott, Lisa 
Blau, and Abigail Klem.) The following KIPP NYC staff members were also in attendance: Jim Manly 
(Superintendent), Alicia Johnson (President), Jane Martinez Dowling, Veneka Chag, Brian Zied, 
Kerry Mullins, Lise Martina, Diane Flynn, John Carter, Rebecca Sleath and Shahum Ajmal. There 
were two members of the public in attendance: Kange Kaneene and PCS Properties Foundation, Inc. 
Board Member Jack Chorowsky. 

Mr. Mayer called the meeting to order and welcomed attendees. 

Mr. Mayer asked for public comments. 

Mr. Carter shared his experience as founding Principal of KIPP Inquire and answered questions 
from Board members. 

s: 
Upon a motion by Mr. Mayer the board voted: 

o To approve the filing of IRS Form 990 for Fiscal Year 2020 
o To approve Fiscal Year 2022 budget 
o To approve repayment of $1mm of the $5mm 

revolver 
o To re-elect for a term of two years the following individuals as members to the 

Board: Rafael Mayer, Whitney Tilson, and Joseph Negron 
o To approve and re-confirm the appointment of each of Rafael Mayer, Richard Taft 

and Whitney Tilson as members, and Richard Taft as Chair, of the Audit Committee 
o To ratify and re-confirm the designation of each of Abigail Klem, Valerie Lancaster-

Beal, Marva Smalls, Randy Simpson, Rik Willard and Elias Alcantara as a 
recommended director of the Board on the board of directors of KIPP New York, Inc. 

o To approve the reappointment of Rafael Mayer as the Board's representative on the 
board of directors of KIPP NYC Facility Holdings, Inc. 

http:KIPPNYC.org


       
   

 
          

     
     

      
 

  

o To approve the reappointment of  Rafael Mayer as Chair, James Manly as 
Superintendent, Richard Taft as Treasurer, and Aisha Christian as Secretary and 
Compliance Officer 

o To approve the  authorization of each of the following and their duly appointed 
successors to negotiate and execute agreements in the name and on behalf of the 
Board:  James Manly, Superintendent and Natalie Webb, Deputy Superintendent 

o To approve the minutes of the April and May meetings 

Adjournment 
The meeting was adjourned. 



     
  

 
       

           
        

            
           

           
              

            
              

   
 

                
           

           
          

 
 

         
 

      

           
              

      
 

   

Academy 
Meeting of the Board of Trustees 

March 9, 2021 

The KIPP Academy Charter School March 9, 2021 
using the Zoom videoconferencing platform, in accordance with special provisions of New York 
Executive Orders 202.1, 202.14, 202.28, 202.38, 202.48, 202.55,202.60, 202.67, 202.72, 202.79, 
202.87, 202.91 and 202.96.In accordance with the Open MeetingsLaw and the previously 
referenced Executive Orders, advance notice of the meeting was posted on KIPPNYC.org, the 
meeting was recorded, and a verbatim written transcript of the meeting was produced. All 
attendees and guests of the meeting were present by videoconference or telephone. The following 
Trustees were in attendance: Rafael Mayer, RichardTaft, GwendolynBrunson and Joe Negron. 
Secretary of the Board Aisha Christian and PCS Properties Foundation,Inc. Board member Jack 
Chorowsky were also present. 

Also in attendance was a Director of KIPP New York, Inc. (Abigail Klem) and Trustees of KIPP NYC 
Public Charter Schools (Rafael Mayer, Richard Taft, and GwendolynBrunson). The following KIPP 
NYC staff members were alsoin attendance: Jim Manly (Superintendent), AliciaJohnson 
(President), Aisha Christian, BrianZied, Jane Martinez Dowling, Lise Martina, Rebecca Sleath and 
Tessa Kratz. 

Mr. Mayer called the meeting to order and welcomed attendees. 

Mr. Mayer asked for public comments. 

Mr. Manly gave an overview of KIPP first day of hybrid learning. 
Ms. Kratz gave an update on the KIPP Through College and Career work tocreate graduate aims 
using an equity by design process. 

Adjournment 
The meeting was adjourned. 

http:KIPPNYC.org
http:202.55,202.60


   
 

 
    

   
     

    
    

   
   

  
   

   
 

     
   

       
  

   
 

 

  

      
 

 

 
 

         
    

   
 

 
 

 

  

Academy 
Meeting of the Board of Trustees 

April 20, 2021 

The KIPP Academy Charter School April 20, 2021 
using the Zoom videoconferencing platform, in accordance with special provisions of New York 
Executive Orders 202.1, 202.14, 202.28, 202.38, 202.48, 202.55, 202.60, 202.67, 202.72, 202.79, 
202.87, 202.91, 202.96, 202.97 and 202.98. In accordance with the Open Meetings Law and the 
previously referenced Executive Orders, advance notice of the meeting was posted on KIPPNYC.org, 
the meeting was recorded, and a verbatim written transcript of the meeting was produced. All 
attendees and guests of the meeting were present by videoconference or telephone.  The following 
Trustees were in attendance: Rafael Mayer, Richard Taft, Gwendolyn Brunson and Joe Negron. 
Secretary of the Board Aisha Christian and PCS Properties Foundation, Inc. Board member Jack 
Chorowsky were also present. 

Also in attendance were Trustees of KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools (Rafael Mayer, Richard Taft, 
and Gwendolyn Brunson) and Trustees of KIPP New York, Inc. (Dave Levin, Angela Diaz, Larry 
Robbins, Randy Simpson, Elias Alcantara, Valerie Lancaster-Beal, Fred Scott, Lisa Blau, and Abigail 
Klem.) The following KIPP NYC staff members were also in attendance: Jim Manly (Superintendent), 
Alicia Johnson (President), Aisha Christian, Brian Zied, Jane Martinez Dowling, Lise Martina, Brian 
Zied, Diane Flynn, Dominique Mejia, John Powell, Veneka Chag, Rebecca Sleath and Shahum Ajmal. 

Mr. Mayer called the meeting to order and welcomed attendees. 

Mr. Mayer asked for public comments. 

Ms. Mejia shared her experience as founding Principal of KIPP Affirm and answered questions from 
Board members.  

The Board voted: 

To approve the minutes of the November and December 2020 meetings and the January, 
February and March 2021 Meetings 
To move into executive session following the public portion of the Board meeting 

The Board entered executive session pursuant to Section 105(d) of the New York State Open 
Meeting Law. 

Adjournment 
The meeting was adjourned. 

http:KIPPNYC.org


   
  

 
      

   
 

    
   

  
     

   
  

 
     

       
   

 

 

  
 

 
     

      
       

     
      

  
 

  

Academy 
Meeting of the Board of Trustees 

March 2, 2021 

The KIPP Academy Charter School met virtually on March 2, 2021 
using the Zoom videoconferencing platform, in accordance with special provisions of New York 
Executive Orders 202.1, 202.14, 202.28, 202.38, 202.48, 202.55, 202.60, 202.67, 202.72, 202.79, 
202.87, 202.91 and 202.96. In accordance with the Open Meetings Law and the previously 
referenced Executive Orders, advance notice of the meeting was posted on KIPPNYC.org, the 
meeting was recorded, and a verbatim written transcript of the meeting was produced. All 
attendees and guests of the meeting were present by videoconference or telephone. The following 
Trustees were in attendance: Rafael Mayer, Richard Taft, Gwendolyn Brunson, Joe Negron and 
Whitney Tilson. Secretary of the Board Aisha Christian was also present. 

Also in attendance were Trustees of KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools (Rafael Mayer, Richard Taft, 
Adaobi Kanu, Erica Dewan, and Gwendolyn Brunson.) The following KIPP NYC staff members were 
also in attendance: Alicia Johnson (President), Aisha Christian, Lise Martina and Rebecca Sleath. 

Meeting 
Mr. Mayer called the meeting to order and welcomed attendees. 

Mr. Mayer asked for public comments. 

The Board voted to: 
Adopt various resolutions relating to certain governance matters, including, but not limited 
to, the appointment of officers and authorized signatories;  the designation of Board 
representatives and recommended directors to the Board of KIPP NYC Facility Holdings, Inc. 
and KIPP New York, Inc., respectively; the appointment of Audit committee members; and 
the ratification and confirmation of actions previously taken relating to KIPP Academy 
Charter School. 

Adjournment 
The meeting was adjourned. 

http:KIPPNYC.org




   
  

 
     

   
    

    
    

   
        

  
 

     
    

 
       

  
 

 

  
 

 
 

  

Academy 
Meeting of the Board of Trustees 

May 18, 2021 

The KIPP Academy Charter School May 18, 2021 
using the Zoom videoconferencing platform, in accordance with special provisions of New York 
Executive Order 202.1 and each successor Executive Order to 202, including Executive Order 
202.105. In accordance with the Open Meetings Law and the previously referenced Executive 
Orders, advance notice of the meeting was posted on KIPPNYC.org, the meeting was recorded, and a 
verbatim written transcript of the meeting was produced. All attendees and guests of the meeting 
were present by videoconference or telephone. The following Trustees were in attendance: Rafael 
Mayer, Richard Taft, Gwendolyn Brunson and Whitney Tilson. 

Also in attendance were Trustees of KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools (Rafael Mayer, Richard Taft, 
and Gwendolyn Brunson) and Directors of KIPP New York, Inc. (Dave Levin, Angela Diaz, Larry 
Robbins, Randy Simpson, Elias Alcantara, Valerie Lancaster-Beal, Fred Scott, Lisa Blau, and Abigail 
Klem.) The following KIPP NYC staff members were also in attendance: Jim Manly (Superintendent), 
Alicia Johnson (President), Jane Martinez Dowling, and Candace Rogers. 

Meeting 
Mr. Mayer called the meeting to order and welcomed attendees. 

Mr. Mayer asked for public comments. 

There were no board votes. 

Adjournment 
The meeting was adjourned. 

http:KIPPNYC.org




     
  

 
   

          
       

             
            

            
           

            
    

 
               

             
             

          
       

 

         
 

      

             
            

      
 

      
 

   
 
 

Academy 
Meeting of the Board of Trustees 

October 20, 2020 

The KIPP Academy October 20, 
2020 using the Zoom videoconferencing platform, in accordance with special provisions of New 
York Executive Orders 202.1, 202.14, 202.28, 202.38, 202.48, 202.55, 202.60, and 202.67. In 
accordance with the Open Meetings Law and the previously referenced Executive Orders, advance 
notice of the meeting was posted on KIPPNYC.org, the meeting was recorded, and a verbatim 
written transcriptof the meeting was produced. All attendees and guests of the meeting were 
present by videoconference or telephone.  The following Trustees were in attendance: Rafael 
Mayer, Richard Taft, Gwendolyn Brunson,and Joe Negron. Secretary of the Board Aisha Christian 
was also present. 

Also in attendance were Directors of KIPP New York, Inc. (Valerie Lancaster Beal and Abigail Klem) 
and Trustees of KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools (Rafael Mayer, Richard Taft, Adaobi Kanu, and 
Gwendolyn Brunson). The following KIPP NYC staff members werealsoin attendance: Jim Manly 
(Superintendent), Alicia Johnson (President), Aisha Christian,Jane Martinez Dowling, Leslie Kim, 
Brian Zied, Kerry Mullins, and Rebecca Sleath. 

Mr. Mayer called the meeting to order and welcomed attendees. 

Mr. Mayer asked for public comments. 

Ms. Kim gave an overview of the Learning Cycle survey results from parents, students and staff. 
Ms. Kim then answered questions. Mr. Manly closed the board business by previewingLearning 
Cycle  and plans at KIPPNYC. 

The Board held no votes. 

Adjournment 
The meeting was adjourned. 

http:KIPPNYC.org
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